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Vision
BMORHEBEAKREIRERG  BakE URATROES
To improve the quality of life for our community through

continuous enhancement of our electrical and mechanical
engineering services.

P
ETy
Mission
% F CUSTOMER
BHEEMNIRIE UWHERFHNES -

Providing quality engineering solutions to satisfy our customers’
needs.

& T STAFF

BY X HEHME THM  WEFMENTERE -
Developing a competent workforce and maintaining a harmonious
environment.

5 P9 ORGANISATION

ERMEERMEENRE  UIREEERS -

Keeping pace with technology development and process
improvement for service enhancement.
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Values

# 15 INTEGRITY
BPIFRENRGE #IERIFERERES -
We uphold honesty and integrity to embrace an ethical culture.

i & R % SERVICE EXCELLENCE
BMRHELZ2AE  S8E  ERNASIENEEN R -
We provide safe, reliable, efficient, cost-effective and quality

services.

B3 1= CARING
HFBEET REMTRAR T EHBRE -

We care for our staff, customers, community and the environment.

LA % % &~ CUSTOMER FOCUS
RMEEFHNZERTE BMAZLB  BEEHIEFERE
AmBE P EEMS -

We focus on the needs of our customers and provide engineering
solutions in a proactive and responsible manner to win their trust
and support.

7 & COMMITMENT
BT Z 1T — B (ST A

We do what we promise.
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EPMARE REIEREEES RN
2015/16$f“ﬂ’3¥i%?%,.*$%ﬁ£ FEIR
AtEB5764E 8B T WAEBREREZ
48% (BFREEE  BERMANEE
EEMMAEENEAL -

We are pleased to report that the
Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund had steady performance
in 2015/16. Total revenue was HK$5,764
million while return on revenue was
4.8%. The good results are consistent
with our budget targets and in line

with the slim-profit model.

BRI A S 48+
Mr Chan Fan, Frank, JP
ETIRLEESHAKE

General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical
Services Trading Fund
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TWO DECADES OF OPERATION AND CO-CREATING
VALUE

The year 2016 marks the 20th anniversary of EMSTF. Throughout these years,
EMSTF has faced competition from many companies in the market providing
similar services. Thanks to the leadership of our predecessors, the hard work
of our colleagues and the support of our clients, EMSTF has reached where it
is today. We are grateful as we reflect on our path in the past two decades,
and have recorded the details of this journey in the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Trading Fund 20th Anniversary Commemorative Booklet attached in
this report so that readers may know more about the story of our
transformation for survival.

Our business has seen steady development in the past two decades. We have
made considerable progress in enhancing our service quality and productivity,
thus achieving the mission given to EMSTF upon its establishment. Over the
years, EMSTF has provided an extensive range of E&M engineering services to
government departments and public bodies covering public facilities
throughout the territory. Our services touch the everyday life of all in Hong
Kong. The value of EMSTF's existence lies in raising the community’s quality
of life and creating public value. Pursuant to the different sectors of our E&M
engineering services, each of our Strategic Business Units (SBUs) has defined its
own service values to enable our colleagues to clearly understand the meaning
and mission behind their work. Those service values help the SBUs implement
their mission, take good care of clients’ E&M facilities round the clock, and
meet the expectations of our clients and the public through solid performance.

In recent years we have stepped up efforts to help clients save energy,
improve cost effectiveness and better manage their E&M assets. Over the past
20 years, EMSTF has raised its overall productivity by over 30%. Thus we are
in the position to reduce the magnitude of service charge increases for clients
to lessen their financial pressure. We shall continue with our slim-profit model
so that clients may save and divert more resources to their core services for
the benefit of the public.

Though EMSTF's business is stable, we are not complacent. Faced with market
competition, we have deployed proactive initiatives to continuously improve
our services, such as developing a Staff Competency Matrix and stepping up
training to enhance service quality. We are also making more flexible use of
market forces so that in the event of business loss, the outsourced services
can be taken in-house again as a buffer.
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In addition, the five strategies that we embarked upon in 2013/14 are now in
the third year of implementation, with good progress in every aspect. The
strategies include delivering excellent service, becoming a trade model,
building capacity and a caring culture, enhancing knowledge management
and sustaining green operation.

FLEXIBILITY AND INNOVATION IN SERVICE
IMPROVEMENTS

EMSTF is flexible, innovative and always listens to clients’ needs. We also
introduce new technologies to bring ground-breaking engineering solutions
to clients. During the year, we have begun work to set up a Customer-Centric
e-Platform to provide quick updates to clients regarding work progress. This
will give better service to clients, and enable members of the public to enjoy
higher-quality facilities and services. We shall continue to help clients enhance
asset management through obtaining I1SO 55001 certification for their E&M
assets and promote similar certification initiatives. Meanwhile, we have
introduced new technologies such as integrated Building Management System
and Building Information Modelling to raise our service standards further.
These initiatives are also in line with overall trends to become “smart cities”,
and to contribute to Hong Kong's development. Also, our Customer
Satisfaction Index in this year's Customer Opinion Survey has hit a record high
of 6.45 out of 8. We are grateful to clients’ support and shall continue to
improve our services.

The shortage of local technical workforce, rising operating cost and the
pressure on our clients to further cut cost in the next few years will continue
to have an impact on our financial situation. To tackle the challenge, we shall
implement a series of measures to raise productivity, such as introducing more
advanced technologies and enhancing knowledge management, deploying
our resources in a more flexible manner, and adhering to our slim-profit
model - all with the objective to create public value with our clients.

SETTING AN EXAMPLE IN SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

EMSTF attaches great importance to sustainability and enhancing energy
efficiency in every aspect of its daily operation and customer service. We have
made the EMSD Headquarters Building an energy saving and environmental
“green building” which is also the first government building to obtain BEAM
Plus Existing Buildings Platinum Rating certification, thus setting an example
for other buildings in the community. We shall beautify the environment of
our piazza and make it greener, so that the public may share and enjoy this
unique public space.

EMSTF has also been assisting clients in their energy saving and carbon
reduction programmes, and saved a total of over 16% electricity consumption
for clients over the years. During 2015/16, we have made recommendations
for clients to introduce more energy-efficient E&M facilities, in line with the
Government's policy to save electricity consumption by another 5%.
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CARING AND COLLABORATIVE, NURTURING
TALENT

In addition to serving our clients well, EMSTF also takes the lead in promoting
the development of the E&M industry and nurturing new blood. During the
year, we continued to play a co-ordinating role in the Hong Kong E&M Trade
Promotion Working Group for providing a platform to discuss issues
concerned and organise activities to build up the trade’s image. With great
enthusiasm we also participated in various career expos, including the
Education & Careers Expo 2016 organised by the Trade Development Council.
At the annual expo this year, and in conjunction with 19 government
departments and trade organisations, we used an “E&M Street” approach to
promote the E&M trade and various training schemes available in the industry
to attract young people and other interested individuals. EMSTF also plans to
deploy more than $600 million over the next five years to train over 1 000
E&M personnel to cater to Hong Kong's long-term development.

PROSPECTS

Hong Kong's development began accelerating in the 1970s, and today many
E&M facilities have become aging assets. Proper maintenance and timely
replacement will be particularly important to Hong Kong's sustainable
development. Looking ahead, Hong Kong is moving towards becoming a low-
carbon, smart city which in turn will bring opportunities and challenges to
EMSTF. There will be broader horizons for our development, but with greater
responsibilities too. Regardless of what lies ahead, we must not forget the
original mission of EMSTF, adhere to our values, and stay committed to our
belief in flexibility, innovation, sustainable development, a caring and
collaborative culture, as well as a professional and responsible attitude. This
will enable us to continuously improve our services and create more public
value.

APPRECIATION

As EMSTF celebrates its hard-earned results today, | wish to express our
sincere thanks to the public, our clients, the trades, our staff and all
stakeholders. We are also grateful to various policy bureaux and government
departments for their support. We thank the media, Legislative Councillors
and the public for their unfailing vigilance. We shall continue to strive whole-
heartedly to serve the public and forge ahead.

Chan Fan, Frank
General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund
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The financial results of the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Trading Fund in

2015/16 are consistent with our targets in
the business plan. Despite rising contractor
cost, EMSTF’s overall financial performance
was steady, with return on revenue (ROR)
at 4.8% (2014/15: 5.3%) and total revenue
at HK$5,764 million (2014/15: HK$5,492
million). This is in line with our slim-profit
operating principle.

RERATHL

Mr Tai Tak-him, JP
KETREZRIER/EERS

Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD




BEERE

Lo - FRAPTF2015/16 6 E B 37 T B B 48 g
Z NEAREERMESHTEANBRERAR
EITHENRE - NETHRLIRE - EREBE
EBLROETEBEMNRGER  BIHAEE

HE L o

2015/16 F EE &

BMEA 2016 F YRR THBEEERBHITZ
BHH BFRABRBEEREDALER XERAH
RAEFEXNNEFPBHRERTY  ARRER
BEX-FR BEREESOHBEATERNS
BTBRESIBRERBAALARZF K
325 77 5h ot PR BE AR 4T 2455 o

B2013/14FEUR - RS FEEH BT RFR
BB MERIELRE UWESEBEARF
MKHEEE AIEAREBEENEMRIGEME
ER -BMMARSEEEF=FE  REHE
TEBER FHHRERBELERY #EL8
ITAeRFHEGCEEFE mMELMHREIE
MAERRBHTAMEE LEKR - AKX
FHRBREN —AXKNSERE LUB5H
H KB R AT SR ©

EERBKFEFERA

BMERFATHEBBEITHR TR
REHAEERAEFFEANEENEZE
ENEFPRBYPLEREREIR -BEP AT
THREEE BRMARERS>ZBEEER -
BPVREFH - aREBEIEBRBRNR2017TFFR
TR ERRFETCEINEFP RS HERNR
BREHERIIEF BRARSHEERMNEHAS
T-HFEWM ERARBEYHELRBPOLH
—d BEERLERBERET-

BWEEBEN20-FEIETARFEFEER
FAENZHAE 210 AEE460 A - #KEE
BEZTARARBEBENREFPER B 0
EPRETAEINER MBELHNEXHE
THRMRE ARGIMEIE RAESHEHEM
FEEBEMNSZAMBERANHI - LERLE
BERNER -

EMSTF Report 2015/16

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

Furthermore, the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) have been revised in
2015/16 to better gauge our overall performance in different aspects for
continuous improvement, and the KPI results are included in this report.
Services Review of our Strategic Business Units (SBUs) and corporate
supporting units are set out in the subsequent chapters.

2015/16 HIGHLIGHTS

Our business volume has expanded mainly due to new venues we served and
increase in scale of services, despite losing some tenders from the Airport
Authority in early 2016. We also noted the new approach of the Hospital
Authority to adopt open tendering for both biomedical equipment and
electrical and mechanical services, and we had been working hard to prepare
for this challenge.

Since 2013/14, we have reported every year our progress of the five-year
strategic plan in achieving the corporate goal of “creating public value for
community betterment through partnership with our clients”. We are pleased
to report in this third year that there was continuous progress in the strategic
implementation, most notably in the areas of delivering excellent service,
building staff capacity and sustaining green operation. Also seeing progress
were initiatives in enhancing knowledge management and becoming a trade
model. Indeed, the five strategies are interrelated and advancement in one
area would help drive the others forward.

CONTINUOUS CUSTOMER SERVICE ENHANCEMENT

Following the completion of a feasibility study by a consultant this year, the
phase one work of a completely revamped Customer Service Centre (CSC)
operating on a Customer-Centric e-Platform has already commenced. We are
deeply thankful to our clients for sharing their views with us and our
consultant in the feasibility study. Upon the targeted completion of phase one
by late 2017, the system would be capable of automatically assigning jobs
when fault calls come in, and the staff concerned would be notified in real-
time via their mobile devices. That being said, this is only the first step
towards building our new CSC, with remaining phases to be done.

A related initiative was expanding the sample size of our monthly telephone
survey of clients from 210 to 460 respondents in 2015, thus covering more
clients in different service types. Any “unsatisfactory” case is now promptly
escalated to the chief engineer for his follow up. The lessons learnt are then
shared with other SBUs to prevent recurrence.
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STRENGTHEN ASSET MANAGEMENT AND
CONTRACTOR MANAGEMENT

We have kept our momentum in helping clients with their E&M asset
management (AM). Our innovative development in integrating Building
Information Modelling with AM was in good progress and well recognised by
the industry. In parallel, we have started re-categorisation of clients’ assets
with a standardised methodology throughout EMSTF, followed by a more
rigorous O&M regime and putting more emphasis on aging asset replacement
and retrofitting to reduce faults and enhance asset performance.

The enhanced Performance Monitoring System for Maintenance Contract
recently implemented was found useful for staff to manage our contractors.
The contractors’ appraisal performance system was better utilised, so that
unsatisfactory performers can be monitored closely for improvement whilst
outstanding contractors are praised. We have also promoted safety to our
contractors through various channels to raise their safety awareness and
standards.

STEPPING UP STAFF COMPETENCY AND
KNOWLEDGE MANAGEMENT

Meanwhile, we have furthered our work in developing a Staff Competency
Matrix which will enhance the professionalism of our colleagues by identifying
the departmental competence and training needs. The process is more
complicated than it appears, as the variety of our work is extensive and
involves numerous engineering disciplines. We have compiled the matrix for
professional staff in mid-2016, and the matrix for technical staff is to be
followed. When completed, the overall matrix will give a set of better-defined,
documented competency objectives for building up staff competency. In
addition, we have enhanced our Technician Training Scheme in September
2015 for better equip our trainees for meeting operational needs.

Another area is to raise staff reporting in operational and financial aspect.
Operational matters like incident report submission and payment of contractor
invoices must be handled in a timely manner. Lessons learnt from major
incidents must be well documented and shared with all SBUs for corporate
learning and quality enhancement. This is consistent with our strategy to
enhance knowledge management, sharing and organisational learning. With
the implementation of the profit centres in the financial management system,
management can monitor and control business more effectively with
delegated staff responsible for profit centre financial performance.

GREEN OPERATION BREAKS NEW GROUND

To help clients fulfil the 5% electricity saving target over five years from 2015
as required by the Government, we have come up with more energy
engineering solutions for them, in particular the retro-commissioning of air-
conditioning systems to optimise their energy performance. We also managed
to prepare a holistic bid and advised clients on the fund bidding process.
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Another milestone in green operation was that the EMSD Headquarters
Building obtained the BEAM Plus Existing Buildings Platinum certification. We
hope that, being the first government existing building to receive such
certification, our headquarters might set an example for other existing
buildings to follow.

TECHNOLOGY FOR CLIENTS AND FUTURE “SMART
CITIES™

In response to Customer Opinion Survey 2014, we attach great importance to
technology applications. We set up several Working Groups led by chief
engineers to explore advance technologies in areas such as electricity, air-
conditioning, lifts and escalators, vehicles and fire service facilities. The aim is
to help clients come up with innovative solutions for green and smart
operation. The Working Groups also have regular contact and interaction with
the trades and academics, covering technologies and other engineering
aspects like operation and maintenance practices, safety as well as the long
term development of the trade.

OUTLOOK AND APPRECIATION

The challenge, as in recent years, remains how to cope with rising contractor
cost and aging equipment, and to manage effectively an expanding service
portfolio with limited number of staff. This is precisely what our five strategies
aim to tackle. We are also preparing from the E&M service side in supporting
the community to meet the low-carbon and smart city development.

On this auspicious occasion of EMSTF’s 20th anniversary, we must first thank
our clients for their unfailing support throughout the years without which
EMSTF would not have survived in the first place. Equally important is our
current and former staff whose commitment, hard work and team spirit have
made it possible for EMSTF to emerge from every crisis with greater care and
resilience.

Our heart-felt appreciation also goes to the Executive Board for its guidance
and advice. We also thank our contractors and the trades for their support.
The year 2016 marks the 20th anniversary of the trading fund, and we look
forward to seeing the healthy development of EMSTF.

Tai Tak-him
Deputy Director/Trading Services, EMSD
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We always keep an eye on the latest high energy-efficiency technology. To reduce
energy consumption, we started replacing aging air-cooled chillers with the new
oil-free chillers for hospitals including the Queen Mary Hospital.

BUILDING A GREEN AND HEALTHY COMMUNITY

With a huge population of over seven million and an ever-deteriorating aging
problem in Hong Kong, the safeguarding of citizens’ health has become a top
priority for us. We are determined to be the strongest supporter of our
citizens and clients by sparing no efforts in continuing to provide O&M
services for public hospitals and healthcare departments.

In 2015/16, we successfully renewed our five-year Service Level Agreement (SLA)
with the Government Laboratory and secured a two-year contract from the
Hospital Authority (HA) for the maintenance of biomedical equipment at 18
public hospitals. We also started the preparation for the open tender for the
O&M services for electrical, mechanical, air-conditioning and building services
systems, biomedical engineering systems and general electronics systems at
HA's hospitals and clinics from 2017 onwards.

RBDEERBR - MM
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Through the “Walk-around Energy Survey”, we carefully reviewed the energy usage
patterns at HA's acute hospitals, such as the Queen Elizabeth Hospital, and helped

our clients achieve energy cost saving.
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Our transition in service model from SLA to open tender had been quite a
challenge for us. HA is the largest client of the EMSTF. We have been serving
HA for nearly two decades and we are keen to continue delivering reliable
hospital engineering services for the health and well-being of the community.

We treasure feedback and suggestions from every client and as such a new
“client visit” programme was launched in 2015/16. The objective of this
programme was to gain better understanding of the operational requirements
and expectations of clinical staff in order to enhance our technical support
and services offered to them. The programme was well received and we will
continue to roll out and enhance this customer service initiative.

During the year, we also helped the Fire Services Department to standardise
the design of its ambulances, so that user needs could be better satisfied, and
the enhanced design would speed up the order-to-delivery process in future
procurements, shortening the time for supply of ambulances.

Promoting energy efficiency and green initiatives at healthcare premises is
another major mission of our team. In 2015/16, we critically reviewed the
energy usage patterns in HA's acute hospitals through the “Walk-around
Energy Survey” to identify energy management opportunities and developed
a comprehensive energy portfolio for HA. By adopting a holistic green
operation strategy, we assisted HA in charting a roadmap to achieve energy
cost savings and greenhouse gas emission reduction.
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We conducted on-site training in boiler maintenance at the Queen Elizabeth Hospital to
enhance our staff’'s O&M knowledge and technical capabilities, thereby passing on expertise

to younger colleagues.
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Commitment in mastering the latest green technologies and helping our
clients to apply them is essential to the enhancement of energy efficiency. We
began the replacement of aged air-cooled chillers with the new oil-free
chillers, which employ the latest high energy-efficiency technology, to reduce
energy consumption in hospitals. To equip our staff with advanced skills and
knowledge to ensure the newly installed oil-free chillers always perform their
best, a series of “Train the Trainer” workshops delivered by overseas experts
as well as internal trainings were conducted.

A dedicated team of staff is essential to our provision of reliable services to
the healthcare sector. We motivated our staff by arranging the senior
management staff present appreciation letters to them in person in
recognition of their work and by inviting them to share their success stories
with colleagues.

With more new public hospitals and healthcare venues to be commissioned in
the coming years, we have reviewed our setup and planned for the delivery of
effective and reliable services for the new venues. We strive to equip our team
with the essential knowledge and expertise, and will remain committed to our
service values — serving in the best interest of patients and their families as
well as healthcare workers.
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Under the Frontline Work Shadowing
Programme, our engineer (left) had a
chance to experience first-hand the
daily routine of a frontline staff (right)
in a High Voltage Switch Room.
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FRONTLINE WORK SHADOWING AT HOSPITALS

Trying to stand in someone else’s shoes does help communication sometimes.
This is indeed the purpose of the Work Shadowing initiative proposed by
Mr Leung Suet-fai, senior engineer of the Health Sector Division. “A comment
from frontline staff in the Staff Satisfaction Survey is that professionals should
communicate more with them,” he said. Inspired, he then developed the
concept and invited his chief engineer to be the first to participate in the pilot
programme to set an example for other colleagues.

The chief engineer joined the work of two work supervisors and a senior
artisan in the plant room at Tuen Mun Hospital on the 5-11 pm shift on
25 November 2015. He cleaned the strainer for the sea water-cooled air-
conditioning system, removed the barnacles and other rubbish inside, checked
the condition of plant facilities, and took fault calls from clients in the hospital
to experience the daily routine of the frontline staff and the pressure they
faced.

“We briefed the frontline staff about the programme beforehand and told
them it was not a show. They could just assign him any task they perform
every day, without having to worry about the difficulty of such work,” he
said.

A few senior engineers and engineers from the division have also taken part
in the work shadowing programme to better understand and communicate
with frontline staff.

BRI FIEIFEN—Ho  TREM(E)EAMZEEI(E) M
W B T "< Al KRR E T ERNRH -

As part of the Frontline Work Shadowing Programme, our engineer (left)
conducted basic testing on a water sample extracted from a cooling
tower with the assistance from a frontline staff (right).
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ENHANCING OUR QUALITY OF LIFE

Shopping at municipal markets is many Hong Kong citizens’ daily routine. Our
municipal services team has continued to use integrated Building Management
System (iBMS) to remotely monitor the operating status of key facilities in
markets, such as power distribution systems and lifts and escalators, to
maximise their availability and reliability for citizens.

Working closely with the Food and Environmental Hygiene Department (FEHD),
we have started replacing aged lifts and escalators of over 20 years in 37
markets in 2015/16, with more such replacements planned for the next two
years. In view of the heavy usage pattern in markets, the new escalators will
be outdoor design for higher reliability. We have also been working on 1SO
55001 certification for escalators in FEHD markets to enhance asset
management. Preparations for certification should be completed by the third
quarter of 2016.
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We replaced an aging escalator with an outdoor design at Yeung Uk
Road Market for FEHD to enhance its performance. Our colleague uses
his tablet to get real-time data of the new escalator from iBMS.
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iBMS enables our staff to acquire real-time data of various E&M systems in
the To Kwa Wan Market and Government Offices Building, thus ensuring
better system management and higher equipment reliability.
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ZEREMEFEGH MESEBKZER - H B  Technology was also applied to other client venues. During the year, iBMS
LRRERNTETHEABFTEREAL  ILETE  wasinstalled at the General Post Office, leading to higher equipment reliability
SHEBNTEEIRS  EREJTALET S 4EMR A o and operation cost savings for the client. On the energy efficiency front, trial
ERRMFE T BRFATESB XEEYE K installations to optimise chiller plant performance were carried out at the
PRI RO ERIESRAKAEKERL  Hong Kong Heritage Museum and the Central Mail Centre, which could save
HE BFEEBAEMESMAOBAEEEE ZE  as much as 15% electricity consumption. Our plan is to extend iBMS and
15% - HPItZ R B EEABFTEEZS LES  chiler optimisation to many more venues in future, so that the public may
HABCHMBERZ2F 25 EmMRAIZMAE  enjoy more reliable and energy efficient facilities.
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(Right) Our staff is conducting inspection to ensure reliability of the chiller
system at the Central Mail Centre in Kowloon Bay.

BPNBANGRAERAFEHE AR S EEEM
HRE B IEHIRBAMER

Using an infrared thermal scanner to regularly monitor
the switch panel of a chiller to prevent overheating.

safe D
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Swimming is one of the popular pastimes in Hong Kong. Learning from
overseas incidents where swimmers have been entrapped by the swimming
pool water suction system, we initiated a review of the design of all public
pools designs in Hong Kong and found that their design complied with local
and overseas standards. However, to be doubly safe, we proactively
recommended a trial application of the Safety Vacuum Release System (SVRS)
to three swimming pools. The trial proved the SVRS to be an effective
additional safety device as it could cause tripping of the circulation pump
resulting in the release of trapped swimmer or object. We have recommended
to revise the pool’s design guidelines to include the SVRS in new swimming
pools in future. Where appropriate, retrofitting proposals for existing
swimming pools would be discussed with the Leisure and Cultural Services
Department (LCSD).

At the same time, our O&M services for stage lighting at Ko Shan Theatre
New Wing will become part of the Service Level Agreement with LCSD,
making our services more seamless for Ko Shan Theatre. With close
collaboration with LCSD and FEHD, we replaced an aging chiller plant at the
Lockhart Road Data Centre within just 21 hours starting from 11 pm on
2 April 2015. The Data Centre was critical to the operation of many online
services such as booking of LCSD recreational facilities and application for
liquor licences. With meticulous planning and preparations, attention to detail
in measurement and careful simulations, as well as good co-ordination with
both clients and contractors, our team completed the task smoothly and on
time, to clients’ great satisfaction.

BLERREMEKRENEE  AEFPEEARERAKA TATR

We carried out trial installations to optimise chiller plant performance at the Hong Kong Heritage Museum so as
to save energy and cost for the client and give the public a more inspiring and greener museum experience.
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INNOVATIVE AIR-CONDITIONING SOLUTION

The public might not be aware that a damaged sea water cooling pipe of the
air-conditioning system caused a temporary suspension of air-conditioning at
City Hall on 5 June 2015.

Mr Wong Min-hung, Kevin, the subject engineer in the Municipal Sector
Division, promptly worked with the client LCSD and his team to install a
temporary chiller plant at the City Hall Memorial Garden. By 6 June, the plant
was already operating to maintain the venue’s temperature at around 25.5
degrees Celsius.

“Everything was done within 36 hours, including installation, pipe connection
and cable wiring,” said Kevin. The team worked with the client to tackle all
related issues like safety, and put up notices at the venue to alert users and
visitors to the air-conditioning situation. No complaints were received from
the public. The client appreciated the team'’s extra efforts in providing an
interim solution in a short period of time.

To prepare for the implementation of municipal solid waste charging, our
Vehicle Engineering Sub-division recently helped the Environmental Protection
Department (EPD) complete a three-month trial of an automated bin-counting
system installed on government refuse collection vehicles (RCVs). We helped
retrofit three RCVs with a system which applied radio frequency identification
technology on the collection bins that would automatically count and record
information such as buildings to which the bins belonged and the number of
bins collected. Data were transferred real-time to the central server that would
facilitate the fee charging mechanism in future. We see such work as helping
clients and raising awareness of citizens in minimising waste generation.

RBHRFRESEEERBTEREDWRE KM/
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To help EPD prepare for the implementation of municipal
solid waste charging, we conducted a pilot test on the
automated bin-counting system. The three-month trial had
zero fault, and the testing result was satisfactory.
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HAVING A SAFE AND SECURE CITY

Our work covers a wide range of services related to safety and security, from
project design and implementation to testing and commissioning and O&M
services for E&M systems and facilities. The city’s safety and security as well as
law and order are all relevant to our work.

A milestone in 2015/16 was the completion of the Fire and Ambulance
Services Academy (FASA) of the Fire Services Department for which we
provided E&M support to design and build the specialised live fire training
simulators. Located at Tseung Kwan O, FASA was opened in March 2016 by
the Chief Executive. The latest simulators installed were life-size mock-ups of
an aircraft, a ship, a train, etc. to facilitate drills for firefighters in a highly
realistic setting. We shall complete the taking up of O&M services for all E&M
facilities in the Academy by end of 2016.

{51 20 [ B FRAE AR A - 3
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Full-size mock-ups such as this aircraft have been installed at the Fire and Ambulance Services
Academy located at Tseung Kwan O. The E&M support we provided in designing and building
the fire simulators ensures the safety and reliability of training for firefighters.
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During the year, the Customs and Excise Department has procured two
mobile X-ray vehicles for inspection of cross-border container trucks. We
helped the client arrange the procurement and provided ongoing
maintenance of the vehicles. For the Hong Kong Police Force, we will take
over the new Yau Ma Tei Police Station on Yau Cheung Road, scheduled for
opening in May 2016, for O&M services for E&M systems.

Also related to law and order was our work at the newly renovated building
of the Court of Final Appeal that began operation in September 2015. In this
historic building, we installed for the Judiciary advanced audio-visual and
simultaneous interpretation systems in the courtrooms. The system enables
viewing of evidence and court documents on touchscreen control panels,
supports real-time broadcast of court proceedings at various locations in the
building, and video conferencing with witnesses at other locations. As the
building was protected by the Antiquities and Monuments Ordinance,
installation of E&M facilities was highly challenging, and innovative solutions
were deployed to ensure zero impact on the heritage aspects of the building.

BRI MM EERE T REAGREAKERL - REHNMA KGR E LK WA RE R -
We installed a large-scale solar water heating system at the new Yau Ma Tei Police Station. The system
harnesses the heat in solar radiation to produce hot water and saves energy cost.
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We provide O&M services for the emergency
generator at the new Yau Ma Tei Police Station.
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Our experienced O&M team provides professional services for the Justice Place taken over in 2015/16.

During the year, we also received the Justice Place, renovated from the former
East Wing and Main Wing of Central Government Offices, for O&M services.
Preparations are now underway to receive in 2016/17 the West Kowloon Law
Courts Building, a major venue with over 30 courtrooms and state-of-the-art
facilities, for O&M services. We are happy to have contributed in providing
O&M services for the facilities in law-related buildings so as to bring about an
efficient and pleasant environment where legal proceedings can be smoothly
conducted to uphold justice and equity for the public based on the rule of
law.
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The audio-visual systems which we installed in the Court of

Final Appeal can provide live broadcast of court hearings at
various locations inside the building. Our colleague monitors
the courtrooms from the control room.
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Left) Immediate fault repairs can be carried out once our staff receives alarms or fault reports through iBMS.
Right) Fanling Law Courts Building is one of our Centres of Excellence at client venues for sustaining EMSTF's
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KEEP LEARNING AND MENTORING

YOUNG COLLEAGUES

23

When it comes to imparting technical skills to the younger generation, Mr Sun
Wing-leung is often cited as one of the good mentors in EMSD. As a Work
Supervisor |, he supervises about 14 colleagues who handle the maintenance

and repair of all EMSTF clients’ non-road mobile plants and carriers such as

golf carts, lawnmowvers, tractors, forklifts and beach carriers. He has a passion
for mechanical gadgets, and demands very high technical standards from
colleagues and contractors. “Our challenge is that mobile carriers with new
technologies develop rapidly in the market. We must keep learning to be able

to do the work well.” he said.

Does he have a “secret formula” to mentor young colleagues? According to
Mr Sun, he will let them observe him doing the work, coach them for two to
three years, and they will pick up the skills. Patience is the key.
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HELPING GOVERNMENT SAVE ENERGY AND
RESOURCES

From time to time we also support the Government in implementing other
pioneering initiatives. A task arising from the Chief Executive’s 2015 Policy
Address was to save 5% electricity consumption in government buildings in
the next five financial years, using 2013/14 as the baseline. Being the
maintenance agent of E&M installations for government buildings, we are
well positioned to help our clients develop energy strategy plans accordingly.
A list of 344 government buildings with the highest electricity consumption
was drawn up. Funded by the Environment Bureau, we have conducted
energy audits for the top 150 buildings on the list and identified energy
management opportunities to achieve the saving target. The coming financial
year will see the next batch of buildings on the list going through a similar
exercise.

EMSTF has mobilised all its Strategic Business Units, in particular the team that
provides E&M operation and maintenance services to government buildings,
to help clients achieve the energy saving goal via different types of works. The
solutions range from better housekeeping, equipment retrofits, more
intelligent operating methods to optimise system performance, to major plant
replacements that require long-term investment. New technologies applied
include Central Control Monitoring System upgrading to optimise energy
efficiency of air-conditioning systems, as well as the use of oil-free chillers,
variable speed drives for coolers and split-type units, LED floodlighting and
variable voltage variable frequency lift drives with regenerative power, among
others.

AEMAR BBRMHEEMETEEYIMATR

Our experience in participating in the BEAM Plus Neighbourhood pilot scheme enables us to
help other government buildings plan their “green” and community-friendly features.



LS - B BB IE#E 1T 10-1-1 151 & - BN#£2015/16
B2017/18=FBFERN A LHEH2%EE M
X -AZEHRFREFLAEORBE  BMHERY
BETENBRT  FEMLERBEKFEHRZEIE
HRERE BRPEHEME -

—WEFRE BMEEXHERRBNER K
AIEREERRRRMERIZEMREREE
RERS LW R W E S RERE B RERM
HEETERAES UKRARX -EHREE
BB RIBHE TR 2R B 5t 81 2015/166F E 4
BET MEMTEEMTHERRN RERBER
ERDZRER -

EMSTF Report 2015/16 25

BRPEREZRHBRNERITRER
2 KEREGEERBREMEEEER
RgEe  URITTEEMBRIEREE
RENREFMIMAEEER - BH 8
TERMEBENEEEERBED -
We launched a pilot project to integrate
BIM technology with Asset Management
System at the EMSD Headquarters
Building to enhance the efficiency of
O&M services in buildings and reinforce
asset management. The pictures show
the BIM model of our Lecture Theatre.

Also related is the Government’s service-wide “0-1-1 Envelope Savings
Programme”, i.e. a total of 2% recurrent savings over three financial years to
be achieved from 2015/16 to 2017/18. In the spirit of supporting our clients
through thick and thin, we have offered one-off price reduction in many
Service Level Agreements without compromising our service quality, thus

helping clients reduce cost.

As reported last year, we continued to support the Development Bureau’s
initiative to explore the benefits of applying Building Information Modelling (BIM)
technology to O&M services in buildings, and attempted to integrate BIM
technology with Asset Management (AM) System for greater efficiency. Our
award-winning pilot project at EMSD Headquarters Building continued during
2015/16 and we have been sharing experience with other works departments,
public organisations and the trade.
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WAPIIRPEE R E M IPI D ZI4ERTFIAREZEILIE  Another area where we have been sharing experience with other departments
BIAC R - R PIFE201415F E O S T4R 2B TR is BEAM Plus certification. We have obtained BEAM Plus Provisional Platinum
ERE|TTMNE AT WA2016F S &4 Rating for Existing Buildings in 2014/15, and we have achieved final
REPIN B2 M 2B R ILES  certification in 2016. Our experience in participating in the BEAM Plus
2 BEMERIFOERREZRAEER 7%?@ ZE4h  Neighbourhood pilot scheme, under which we have engaged the community
WEXESMAMGE | REMTELZRE L stakeholders and EMSD staff to plan “green” and other community-friendly
o ESFIIR Al Re B BB AR R M2 EzE L E .ﬂ- 2|  features in our headquarters piazza, might also be of interest to other
B &5 e departments.

AwmHEMEFEMT BRI BEBREEEBFERERGEERN TR
B BEREANZEPLBSERSGNRENRR -
No matter where we are, the operating status of different systems in
the APB Centre can be monitored in real-time via a tablet connected
with iBMS.
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BREREW LIGHTING UP POLLING STATIONS

SHE

ot

I e E L AE S R A DB BB RZ= s Sufficient lighting at polling and counting stations is important to show their

M EBENREZVANAEESIABFRHET - &4&  locations and ensure the smooth operation of all activities inside the stations.

HE B ARERERREMAEERNKBERE =y, EMSTF is responsible for providing a well-lit environment via additional

INEREAZ M WERREMAZRER - lighting at polling and counting stations in all elections under the Registration
and Electoral Office.

S| E - FRIFE2015411 22 B £474920154  For example, we installed more than 28 000 additional light bulbs within two
EEeER AREEEHAN A4 EREZE  weeks at 495 polling and counting stations for the 2015 District Council
UL ANEE28 000% A A - M1S0M A EFEIEE=E  Election held on 22 November 2015. Our 180-member staff team also
HETE MR Wit EmXERK - 2 — {8  conducted site inspections and provided stand-by support services on the day.
Bl F 2720162 A28 A BT E 2 H A S Another example was the Legislative Council (LegCo) New Territories East
FEEAE BRMOAI4EEEZREZ L N5 % Geographical Constituency By-election held on 28 February 2016 for which
& £& 56, » we installed additional lighting at 154 polling and counting stations.

HRZW AT EHEVER -BF55H - (@&  As the stations were typically converted from government schools, sports
B AT EMmMAE - KZ B AR EZHA A —  venues, community halls or village offices, many could be handed over for site
AAXHGMZETIEAEMEREMS  HiL#ETE  work only one day before the polling day. Mock-up station testing was
BMEWRARBTAEE Lo EIREZEHLHESH  therefore important. Another challenge was providing sufficient stand-by
AFIERAGEWMEEBEIIE b —EHKE - manpower to handle fault repairs on polling day.

BEVFOMBEZS BB T/EMN TIZFEETIE  “Thanks to the team’s thorough preparation and co-ordination, there were

MTERBEERT : [ESEKEMBN D EET  only a few fault calls on that day,” said Mr Wong Ka-keung, the subject

BAEHHA 8 RRAWEERRERS - engineer in the Project Division responsible for setting up lighting at the
polling and counting stations for the LegCo By-election.

(B)HME2016F2A28A RV ZEHENSEARERERUW
RHRARERSXERE  UBRELEREBEFELIE-
(Right) We provided stand-by support services for the lighting
installations at various polling and counting stations on 28 February
2016 so as to ensure their smooth operation on the polling day of the
LegCo By-election.

Fj@a/\zowi@ 2 EE > LMEMEZERAR495EKR T N R UE 12K 28 000 % [EENREE B - AR f iR
iRy BREA o

To support the 2015 District Council Election, we provided temporary lightings at the 495 polling and counting
stations which included more than 28 000 energy saving light bulbs within two weeks.
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PROVIDING A SMOOTH JOURNEY FOR ALL

The work of our clients encompasses air, sea and land transport services in
Hong Kong and our work in 2015/16 reflected the progress we made for our
clients in serving the public.

Our airport team provides O&M services for E&M facilities of the government
departments with staff stationed at the new Midfield Concourse of the Hong
Kong International Airport opened in December 2015. The Concourse
provides 20 parking stands, connects to Terminal 1 via an extension of the
Automated People Mover system and can serve up to an additional 10 million
passengers every year. We also won the tender to provide O&M services for
the airport’s general pumping system, and have been preparing the renewal
of the maintenance contract for the airfield ground lighting system.

The team also serves other government departments with staff stationed at
the airport such as the Civil Aviation Department. We have begun to help it
implement an energy optimisation system, involving both equipment upgrades
to more energy efficient models as well as bringing about changes in
operation practices and behaviour of users.

FEREE(FILE -

We work round the clock to provide maintenance services for the airfield ground lighting of
the taxiways of the new Midfield Concourse at the airport to ensure its normal operation.
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BHMHBHEBEERRAEMEMTEERFEASAMEBEHRECRERSE  BEMEMTRE

2 TEM R -

We help the Marine Department upgrade and maintain its Vessel Traffic Services System to ensure
efficient vessel navigation and monitoring.
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A milestone in sea transport was the commencement of operation of the
Marine Department’s Vessel Traffic Services (VTS) System in March 2016. The
VTS, now in its third generation, comprises a network of powerful computers,
sophisticated digital solid state radars and eight integrated operator stations
at the new Vessel Traffic Centre (VTC) where vessel tracking and navigational
assistance services can be all done on screen in a paperless environment. Our
project team that has been helping the client replace and upgrade VTS in the
past few years was particularly busy during the Chinese New Year in 2016
with the testing and commissioning of the new VTS System and VTC. Our role
was to facilitate the client to enhance the quality of vessel navigation and
monitoring in Hong Kong waters.

The public may have noticed that the Kai Tak Cruise Terminal has been
getting busier, with the number of cruise calls rising to about 110 to 120 per
year. Our team there has been stepping up manpower in order to satisfy the
increasing E&M service needs. We are delighted that the Cruise Terminal is
becoming an increasingly important gateway for tourists visiting Hong Kong
and other places in Asia.

As to land transport, we have been working busily on preparation work
related to the takeover of the Eastern Harbour Crossing by the Government in
August 2016. After the takeover, we are responsible for monitoring the O&M
services provided by the tunnel operator for E&M facilities. Meanwhile,
replacement of the Traffic Control and Surveillance System at Shing Mun
Tunnels has also been completed.
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After the takeover of the Eastern Harbour Crossing by the Government in August
2016, we would be responsible for monitoring the O&M services for E&M facilities of
the tunnel operator.

BPERRBRONABREBE2UNKRE  REE
FHMERE -

Our staff at the Information Services Centre is ready round
the clock to handle clients’ fault reports.

During the year, we completed the integration of the city’s traffic light
monitoring system with the Geographic Information System (GIS) platform.
Likewise, the monitoring systems of all footbridge lifts and escalators,
pedestrian and vehicle subway pumping systems as well as power distribution
systems at headquarters buildings of all major client departments have also
been integrated with GIS. The GIS-enabled real-time remote monitoring has
made fault response and rectification for clients much faster. Our Information
Services Centre is now also more efficient as any facility with a reported fault
can be instantly located on the GIS-integrated platform for action.

Also on the horizon is the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge which will
provide a new land transport link to the Mainland. The new boundary crossing
facilities on an artificial island being built will include various E&M systems for
our client departments, such as the Highways Department, the Immigration
Department, the Customs and Excise Department, the Hong Kong Police
Force, the Fire Services Department, etc. This would expand our O&M
portfolio significantly and we are making all necessary preparations.
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BEREHMENTEILSTEMZT TAKING CARE OF RADAR STATIONS IN REMOTE
ZF LOCATIONS FOR AVIATION SAFETY

WMETRECEES ATPIEHENORSER F &IE  EMSTF's client work sometimes takes us to far-flung locations. The Brothers
RME - Pl KB AKIEZEH KRR T E@E Y Point Terminal Doppler Weather Radar (TDWR) Station, for example, sits on a
EHAE—@EILTE mAESEEMKES - #35 KB mountain top in Tuen Mun directly facing the Hong Kong International
IR SR TIRMAEEEAENEREE E4E  Arport. According to Mr Wu Wai-kit, Eddie, Senior Engineer of the Airport
BREIE MEREMOEBERABEZHNEEL  and Vehicle Engineering Division, whose team handles its maintenance and
ZH o AEAKRESEZEHNRARREEZWHCDERLEKS  repair, this is already one of the more accessible radar stations serviced by his
FEr— 1@ - team.

KIE AIE 2 R |EEWN2014FE%EKREY  Commissioned in 2014, the TDWR Station was constructed to house the
B ZWTEBARXEGTHREYE RS EE %2 Hong Kong Observatory’s new windshear weather radar, which collects
FEAEERREE WEIRBEAKEFAMEEKA  meteorological data and provides timely windshear alerts to flights to and
HEREYEBARYENTEEZ  LREMRZEL S 41 from the airport for safeguarding aviation safety. Mr Wu's team provides
EENBX AT ZWMERTHNEBHERS LHE  regular maintenance and fault repair services for the station. As flight safety is
WERE BAPMELZE TP EZ - BHILEE L critical, any fault in the station must be repaired immediately. “The station has
HE R MBI BIE 2 o iz - [FEEUS /38  been operating smoothly in the past two years and our team is on 24-hour
EMEEERT MBI EBth—E24/ B stand-by at all times.” he said.

Frfxan o J

HARBEAKRS S EPRABEZWLERPFIREN LA
F-EEERER ZMHeS LEHRGETHEE -
Although the TDWR Station sits on a remote mountain top in
Tuen Mun, we are ready to provide repair services anytime.

BIRBEBEARNANAEARIS S EPRARE ERRARSRIERIERERS  RENENMEL S
To ensure aviation safety in Hong Kong, we provide maintenance services for the E&M facilities at the
TDWR Station of the Hong Kong Observatory.
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Serving the people of Hong Kong to improve their quality of life is our top
priority. Our tool is a framework of five strategies which guides not only how
we work for client departments, but also how we discharge our social
responsibilities towards our staff, contractors, the environment, the
disadvantaged in the community and indeed every citizen of Hong Kong.

As we celebrate EMSTF’s 20th anniversary, it is interesting to note the long
journey in corporate support and governance work that we have undertaken
since the earliest days of EMSTF. What started as dispersed activities like
training, communication, quality, safety and IT support, etc., have evolved and
progressed over the years to become a coherent set of dynamic corporate
support and governance functions grouped under a branch led by an Assistant
Director, guided by our current strategic framework, with the support of other
units and divisions, to provide services to the department. Moreover, we
adopted a set of newly defined Key Performance Indicators in 2015/16, in
order to comprehensively reflect and monitor the performance of EMSTF.

This is an update of our endeavours in 2015/16.

OUR FIVE STRATEGIES AND CORPORATE
PROGRESS

Deliver Excellent Service

Our first duty is to provide excellent E&M engineering services to client
departments. As of early 2016, we commenced the preparation for the
Customer Opinion Survey (COS) 2016 and soliciting clients’ participation in
the survey which was conducted between 22 June and 3 August. The previous
COS in 2014 achieved a record high Customer Satisfaction Index (CSI) of 6.22
out of 8. Though the 2016 COS was beyond the timeframe of 2015/16, we
are delighted to report that it achieved a new record high CSI of 6.45 out of 8,
as a result of various improvements we made in the past two years.

Meanwhile, we have enhanced our monthly telephone survey mechanism
including an increase of sample size from 210 to 460 cases per month and an
extension of coverage from maintenance to project works. The enhanced
survey mechanism has helped us broaden our reach to more customers and
solicit more comprehensive feedback.
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2015/16

B& 5%
Target Result

Key Performance Indicators
1o WA E R (%)

Return on Revenue (%) 3.4 48

2. HBAGES)
New Business and Growth of Business ($M) = AT

3. EEREEBIASH ARSI _ 6991
Customer Satisfaction Index [on an 8-point scale] :

4. EEPREET RS K T 15 (%) - -
Percentage of Service Level Agreement (SLA) Renewed during the Year (%) ’

5. SABEABESREE(%) . .
Percentage of Satisfaction Level Based on Monthly Customer Feedback (%) :

6 SEEERLETESIMNAK s o
Training Days/Staff (no. of training days per staff for EMSTF) ’ ’

7. BImBEREIAI0DBRHD] _ 6.4'
Staff Satisfaction Rating [on a 10-point scale] :

8. BIEz:E 75 134
Awards for Staff Suggestion Scheme Proposal (no.)

9. EEIRHIKTF AT ORE B (%) 99 09.84
Percentage of SLA Service Performance Target Compliance (%) :

10, ETRLEESATAZHNEIRU(ETAGE) . 38
Reportable Accidents per 1 000 EMSTF Staff (no. per 1 000 staff) ’

1. EREGIRE 0 0
Statutory Non-compliance (no.)
2 = = 3 2 =5 (=] ﬁ@ i N Y Az Ky Qo

12 BEE(TR/E)HETREMBAL BUET O RSB LS B 10838767 10750 467°

Electricity Consumption (kWh) [EMSD Headquarters, Corporate Data Centre and all SBUs]

! 2014F AEMBHORE - T —RAERZE2016/17 FEHETT -
These were the results from the surveys conducted in 2014. The next surveys would be conducted in 2016/17.

: BIEERAREETRAACEAANE TIHINED -

Training Management System is being upgraded to record all training activities attended by staff.

3 0134FENREENBREFERE -

Baseline electricity consumption (exclude client usage) as of FY2013/14.

¢ EE{L#&2015/16FEMHEEENREFPFRE -

Normalised electricity consumption (exclude client usage) as of FY2015/16.
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Our Information Services Centre (ISC) is our hub of fault-and-repair
communications with clients. We completed a feasibility study during the year
to revamp and upgrade the ISC to a higher level where a new Customer
Centric e-Platform will provide the backbone for a future Customer Service
Centre, a more advanced version of the current ISC, making use of mobile
technology. Phased implementation has already begun. Also, we have
revamped the Central Complaint Registry to help us respond to and document
complaints from clients and the public in one centralised system, with the
implementation of bring-up reminder functions to facilitate management
monitoring and take follow-up actions.

In this age of mobile communication, applications can boost convenience and
productivity. A new mobile web platform on smart phones for reporting non-
emergency fault repair cases online was launched, making fault reporting
much easier for clients. A mobile application named Performance Monitoring
System for Maintenance Contract was also launched to enhance monitoring
of maintenance jobs performed by contractors so that project officers can
report progress to clients in a more timely manner.

Quality is an integral part of service excellence. At the corporate level, we
have adopted a holistic approach in transiting our various Quality
Management System and Environmental Management System certifications to
the latest ISO 2015 versions for all six Strategic Business Units (SBUs) and
Corporate Supporting Units. All our Integrated Management Systems (IMS)
for different units will then be merged and converted to become a single,
more unified and aligned IMS, comprising one ISO 9001, one ISO 14001 and
one OHSAS 18001 system. The merging and transition will be completed in
2016 and 2017 respectively.
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More than 200 staff members and guests participated in the Quality and Safety Day 2015. We shared and
appreciated the contribution of our staff in enhancing quality and safety at work.
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At the staff level, we have continued to invite new ideas from colleagues to
improve quality, occupational safety and health under our ongoing Quality,
Environmental and Productivity Promotion Programme. For our annual Quality
and Safety Day held in December 2015, over 100 submissions were received
from staff competing for the Best Service Delivery Enhancement Award as
well as the Best Occupational Health and Safety Enhancement Project Award.
Winning entries were showcased and given awards on that day.

Winning civil service awards is a good testimony to EMSTF's service excellence.
Three staff members were honoured with the Secretary for the Civil Service’s
Commendation Awards in 2015, while two EMSTF teams received awards in
the Civil Service Outstanding Service Award Scheme 2015 under the
"Partnership Award” and “Team Award (General Public Service)” categories
respectively.

The New Engineering Contract forms were adopted for some trial contracts in
the year. We have assisted various SBUs in procuring engineering services by
using the new forms. Subsequent to the completion of a pilot test at EMSD
Headquarters in 2016, our pioneering work in applying Building Information
Modelling cum Asset Management System to enhance O&M work and asset
management in buildings will be continued during 2016/17.

BMEZB-(UEBASRAFE20-FERAKEETHERBAREN
Me BEBER THRRERRREALAEERFAFEFEE
MAERE D -

Three of our outstanding staff members were awarded the
Secretary for the Civil Service's Commendation Awards in 2015.
The Chief Executive the Honourable C Y Leung shook hands with
the awardees and posed for a photo together.
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The revamped EMSD website includes many new features such as the mobile-compatible version

Honourable Mention in the “Best .hk Website Awards 2015".

The EMSD website also underwent a major revamp during the year. The new
site, launched in November 2015, is mobile phone-friendly, easy to navigate
and comes with a more people-oriented design. It won the Honourable
Mention award in the Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited
“Best .hk Website Awards 2015".

Become a Trade Model

As public infrastructure continues to boom in Hong Kong, demand for E&M
workers and professionals remains high. As the leader of the Hong Kong E&M
Trade Promotion Working Group comprising 19 related E&M organisations,
we have again spearheaded many promotion and recruitment activities
including participation in the four-day Education & Careers Expo 2016 at the
Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, using the “E&M Street”
approach to attract young talents to the industry. The Electrical & Mechanical
Day held during the Expo also proved popular with job seekers.

EIHERBEEE2016] BEZH XK
AIgEAEINARX B8 - WHmAWNITE
REREERE MEFANTABHREEDN
AR NER-

In the Education & Careers Expo 2016, EMSD
for the first time adopted the "E&M Street”
approach, featuring a one-stop industry
exhibition and topical seminars, to introduce
youngsters to the career prospects and
development of the E&M industry.

=B 815 000 % M B 2 Bl
BUABEXTRERHLE -
In the past 60 years, the Government Apprentice Training Scheme has
nurtured more than 5 000 E&M professionals. Our new trainees will
continue to uphold the legacy of their predecessors and make contribution
to the community through their professionalism.
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The three-day E&M Discovery Day drew more than 1200 visitors,
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offering

youngsters a golden opportunity to gain an insight into our daily work and develop

a better understanding of the E&M trade.
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The year 2015 marked the 60th anniversary of EMSD’s Apprentice Training
Scheme, an occasion for a series of celebration events including a
retrospective exhibition at the lobby of EMSD Headquarters. We also
leveraged the occasion to recruit new blood to join our Engineering Graduate
Training Scheme and Technician Training Scheme, via promotional activities
such as Teacher’s Day and E&M Discovery Day.

Given EMSTF's leading position in the E&M service market, we have the
responsibility to adopt best practices in O&M work and maintain high
standards of work safety, as well as to promote these to others in the trade.
For our contractors, we held two Contractor Forums in the year to share the
latest safety tips and information, and launched a mobile application so that
contractors could obtain permit-to-work for ceiling void works anytime
anywhere on their smart phones during the maintenance period.

We completed reviewing our Safety and Health Handbook with valuable input
from the trade. We enhanced the measures for work-at-height in accordance
with the Labour Department’s latest requirements introduced to the trade in
mid-2015.
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We organised the

“If I Draw 3Ds" drawing competition in 2015. Our staff can give full

play to their creativity, and their sense of belonging can also be enhanced. Pictured are

the winning pieces.
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Build Capacity and Caring Culture

Staff capacity building is important, so is fostering a caring environment for
our colleagues so that they can help EMSTF achieve its goals while attaining
job satisfaction, personal growth and work-life balance.

As we developed the Staff Competency Matrix, an enhanced Technician
Training Scheme was also launched in September 2015 with greater emphasis
on practical training effectiveness to suit the SBUs' business needs. Another
focus was to launch more Centres of Excellence (CoEs) at major client venues.
CoEs aim to build up and sharpen in-house O&M expertise of major E&M
systems and become trade models for other venues. CoEs also double as on-
the-job training ground for frontline staff and trainees.

To better engage staff, a number of new initiatives were introduced, in
addition to regular activities like the biennial fun fair with a theme on EMSTF
20th Anniversary for staff involvement. The new initiatives included inviting
technician trainees to vote for a new technician trainee uniform design, a
departmental Mascot Hunt cum Mascot Survey that invited all staff to help
propose and indicate their preferred mascot for EMSD, and an “If | Draw 3Ds”
drawing competition, all well received by colleagues. Another new event was
the first Enlightenment Forum held in November 2015 which focused on
sharing knowledge about tender evaluation and pre-tender preparations with
colleagues from all SBUs. As to 11 unions, the Joint Union Meeting with the
Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services became a half-yearly instead of
an annual event from 2016 onwards.

As in past years, we continued to commission the Hong Kong Family Welfare
Society to provide counselling services to all staff. EMSD staff seconded to
other departments can also enjoy the service. Meanwhile, various workshops
on emotional, mental and physical health were held to help colleagues
achieve work-life balance and well-being.




EIREBES-F—HE—7

38

TEEE
CORPORATE STEWARDSHIP

BEEABM - RREAREIBRERZEZ

CEOE T B

Our management staff and guests officiated at the opening ceremony of the

fun fair.

MBBAMKEETESRE SEABRNE
IRENFHEEEZEDNIXHNREFEBTE
M- RPERT BB ERREZETA - KB
RENBITEENBBRELETFE KA[EE
FRFIEAREN  AJAMAEEERERERRADA
BANSOPIHE MAFERZ - BAIZHAK100
NHEEETERPEFLLETEARS MU
BARGRIE - RHRENHAZSRGEES
BRAMEH EREIRFIETELLTREAL
AEEETERE-

BlLAAREE

FEHBZBZE 2HONINSFEREHLIERN
015F8 AT FEETRYBLEAHESZ
BoBUENEERFez— REB-MANUEZE
BEANEE SR AIENESE  ERRES
BERIBREEKEE - MUuRNEEERS
AEBRBXHOFHINE  FEIRIEEAFERE-

BRESBPABITEI S LB TE - KM 3l#E
MAT—EARAEMHLE  N2HABEET
B B RMEBEMRIDAIEEMEEEME
ZTAMEZEMNMNHAT K - [MFE I EHET
HERBNRERFESEMAZ MaEEEA
Bt o BLASIET A N ERER - M2 M 2015/16
FETKBHEMNTLETE  WER201617TFEH
HEZ[AHE] -

HNBERHEYIETI AL ReEmEMEE N
THEE EBHRMIHEMD ZFHE - UIEH
ERERTE WABEETLIZEE B E A
meHMBEEBERE T MEBMEESEMZRE
MABERETH -

Mobile technology is relevant to staff engagement. To create a barrier-free
environment for staff using wheelchairs and staff frequently transporting
goods and documents in trolleys, we have begun a pilot for wireless smart
access control system with a “mobile door control” application that can
unlock doors in our headquarters building via smart phones, instead of access
card, from a distance while maintaining security. Around a hundred EMSD
staff members have already installed the application for a system trial, and
gradual implementation is expected when the existing access control system is
replaced to improve convenience for colleagues and visitors alike.

Enhance Knowledge Management

After much preparation, a new Knowledge Communities Portal was launched
in August 2015 to better facilitate the set-up of virtual knowledge sharing
communities. A key feature of the new portal is three theme-based
knowledge hubs, namely knowledge hub for working groups, knowledge hub
for incident reports and knowledge hub for project teams. The portal also has
a new co-authoring function that makes collaboration among staff much
easier.

To tie in with EMSD’s initiative to develop a Staff Competency Matrix, we
introduced a new knowledge management pilot tool called the Knowledge
Map (K-map) for all SBUs and divisions to identify and codify any critical
knowledge needs under the Matrix. K-maps will be useful to individuals
looking for expert knowledge in specific operational processes, and to senior
management in planning human resource strategies. The pilot project was
completed in 2015/16 and more K-maps would be produced in 2016/17.

Knowledge management is vital to capacity building as well as quality and
productivity improvements. It also helps us document and share knowledge,
enabling us to make the right decisions and stay at the forefront of the fields
of engineering and management. We shall continue to improve and promote
our various knowledge communities and knowledge management tools to
our staff.
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The new menu of Knowledge Communities Portal is more user-
friendly, and the Portal is enriched with more E&M Knowledge

Areas.

BEEER BN TESABREE REEFRHELETHSP -
The piazza of our headquarters was packed with colleagues and visitors who all had a blast that day in fun fair.
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Sustain Green Operation

Our aim is to operate in a sustainable manner in everything we do and in our
interactions with all stakeholders. Numerous quantitative targets have been
set and achieved in our daily operations such as green procurement and
saving natural resources like electricity, water and paper. To lead by example,
we have also been working hard on our headquarters building in the past few
years with the aim of making it the first government building to obtain BEAM
Plus Existing Buildings V1.2 Final Platinum Rating in 2016.

Also worth noting is our participation in the BEAM Plus Neighbourhood pilot-
assessment, which was completed in 2016. The pilot assessment underscores
the importance we attach to a green, harmonious relationship with
stakeholders in our immediate neighbourhood. In a different development,
we have started making preparations in 2016/17 to connect our headquarters
building to the District Cooling System in Kai Tak Development. This will
convert our air-conditioning system from a local chiller plant to that of district
cooling supply, thus saving energy and reducing carbon emissions significantly
to make our operations more environment-friendly.

RIEMESZEBABNRMEEE HMAERERE—IBE
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|—| To increase the greening areas in the EMSD Headquarters
Building, we took the initiative to install a vertical indoor “green

wall” at the lobby.
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Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
TO THE LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of the Electrical
and Mechanical Services Trading Fund set out on pages 42 to 62, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund'’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund is
responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430)
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the
General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards. Those standards
require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the General Manager, Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund as at 31 March 2016,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance.

LAU Sun-wo
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission
26th Floor
Immigration Tower

7 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

27 September 2016
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B2 2016F3 31 HIFF/E for the year ended 31 March 2016
(A BB TF Tz 5 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
H 5
Note 2016 2015
=E 2 Turnover (3) 5,764,171 5,491,718
FER (DN Operating costs (4 (5.430,140) (5,145,459)
EEEF Profit from operations 334,031 346,259
H At A Other income (5) 174,959 137,481
ZHANEBHAEF Profit before notional profits tax 508,990 483,740
ZEFER Notional profits tax (6) (82,502) (76,603)
FEEF Profit for the year 426,488 407,137
Efh 2 mEK s Other comprehensive income - _
FEAZHEKE Total comprehensive income for the year 426,488 407,137
EE&ERKE Rate of return on fixed assets (7) 33.8% 34.6%
FATEG2BE MM i AL The notes on pages 47 to 62 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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K2016F3A31H as at 31 March 2016
(BB TF Lz 5 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
B 5%
Note 2016 2015
kRBEE Non-current assets
ME - RERSEM Property, plant and equipment (8) 823,030 821,753
EFEE Intangible assets 9) 1,125 5,621
INEERESTFER Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 3,000,000 3,000,000
3,824,155 3,827,374
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 75,746 71,443
INEREESTFR Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 504,982 618,401
JE Uk bR 3R K2 FE AR 3 Debtors and prepayments (11) 31,021 49,972
FEY R A TR K Amounts due from related parties (22) 279,234 284,567
RITER Bank deposits 2,260,000 1,388,000
e MIRIT 4 5 Cash and bank balances 5,435 2,431
3,156,418 2,414,814
RBEE Current liabilities
P& Customers’ deposits (12) (941,744) (762,089)
FE R 3K Creditors (801,986) (719,124)
R REE A TR Amounts due to related parties (22) (175,622) (162,580)
& B & T B & Provision for employee benefits (13) (68,742) (61,813)
IEIE WA Deferred revenue (14) (833,900) (610,944)
BN Z2EREH Notional profits tax payable (35,735) (34,743)
(2,857,729) (2,351,293)
REEERE Net current assets 298,689 63,521
BEERERBER Total assets less current liabilities 4,122,844 3,890,895
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
I T T 3K Deferred tax (15) (12,200) (11,161)
1E B 78 7 B s Provision for employee benefits (13) (466,313) (458,322)
(478,513) (469,483)
EEFE NET ASSETS 3,644,331 3,421,412
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

K2016F3A31H as at 31 March 2016
(BB TF Lz 5 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
M 5%
Note 2016 2015
BEXRRE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BEHSEAR Trading fund capital (16) 706,600 706,600
RBAF Retained earnings (17) 2,724,487 2,511,243
BERE Proposed dividend (18) 213,244 203,569
3,644,331 3,421,412
F47EBMME AL The notes on pages 47 to 62 form part of these financial statements.
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CHAN Fan, Frank
General Manager,
Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund

27 September 2016
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B2 20164F3 31 HIFF/E for the year ended 31 March 2016

(BB TF Lz 5 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2016 2015
FNLEe Balance at beginning of year 3,421,412 3,394,451
FEH2ARS Total comprehensive income for the year 426,488 407,137
FAEARKRE Dividend paid during the year (203,569) (380,176)
FRER Balance at end of year 3,644,331 3,421,412
F47E2BMME AL The notes on pages 47 to 62 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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B2 2016F3 31 HIFF/E for the year ended 31 March 2016
(BB TF Lz 5 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
H 5
Note 2016 2015
EEBEENELSRE Cash flows from operating activities
EERT Profit from operations 334,031 346,259
WELEH Depreciation and amortisation 35,181 33,550
ey B REMEUES Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (165) (361)
FEHGEM) /R (Increase) / Decrease in inventories (4,303) 658
JE LUBR R K% TE 1 OR FRAY (Increase) / Decrease in debtors and prepayments
(&) /37 (639) 1,193
FEUL B i A IR K8 Decrease / (Increase) in amounts due from
B (3G ) related parties 5,333 (68,822)
BEFEEI&mEmMm Increase in customers’ deposits 179,654 28,943
JE 5 bR FRAY 18 N Increase in creditors 82,862 126,473
JE A BE 2 A 0K 3R89 38 0 Increase in amounts due to related parties 13,042 5,699
& B 78 ) B 18 &y 32 4 Increase in provision for employee benefits 14,920 573
IE AE U A B9 3E N Increase in deferred revenue 222,956 35,564
B EEMNER Notional profits tax paid (80,471) (66,266)
REEEBEBENRESFEHE Net cash from operating activities 802,401 443,463
REBBENRESRE Cash flows from investing activities
FAEHRBE3MEABMERIT  (Increase) / Decrease in bank deposits with original
FaREy (1E ) /R maturity over three months (1,100,000) 2,200,000
SMNEE TR Decrease / (Increase) in placement with the Exchange
A (3B ) Fund 113,419 (1,091,844)
BEEWE  RIEKLEMLAK  Purchase of property, plant and equipment and
mREE intangible assets (31,962) (17,973)
HEWE  RENEMTE  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 165 361
2 W F B Interest received 194,550 114,415
(AR)/REREEBEBN Net cash (used in) / from
BEEE investing activities (823,828) 1,204,959
MEBEBENRERE Cash flows from financing activities
B E Dividend paid (203,569) (380,176)
ARBMEEENREFHE Net cash used in financing activities (203,569) (380,176)
ReREREEH Net (decrease) / increase in cash and
CRLA) /48 bn 7= 58 cash equivalents (224,996) 1,268,246
BEREFARENENEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,390,431 122,185
RERZERAREMWELLEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (19) 1,165,435 1,390,431
FA4TE2E WM A The notes on pages 47 to 62 form part of these financial statements.
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GENERAL

The Electrical and Mechanical Services Trading Fund (EMSTF) was established on
1 August 1996 under the Legislative Council Resolution passed on 26 June 1996
pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) to
provide comprehensive electrical, mechanical and electronic services, vehicle
services, and project and consultancy services to clients.

Government bureaux, departments and autonomous bodies have the freedom to
use the services of the EMSTF or to choose alternative service providers to meet
part or all of their electrical and mechanical service needs.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by the EMSTF is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements
is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the
EMSTF's accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions concerning
the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial assets and financial liabilities

Initial recognition

The EMSTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into
different categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The categories
are loans and receivables and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair
value, which normally equals to the transaction prices, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability.

The EMSTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the
date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Categorisation

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and which the EMSTF has no intention of trading. This
category includes debtors, amounts due from related parties,
bank deposits, cash and bank balances and placement with the
Exchange Fund.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note
2.3.4).

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the EMSTF estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instruments but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums or discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial
asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled, or when it expires.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any impairment evidence exists, a loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. If in a
subsequent period, the amount of such impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through the statement of comprehensive income.

Notional profits tax

The EMSTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap.112). However, the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the Government) requires the EMSTF to pay to
the General Revenue an amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e. notional
profits tax) calculated on the basis of the provisions of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance. Notional profits tax expense for the year comprises
current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the assets can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the EMSTF on 1 August 1996
were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the
Legislative Council Resolution for the setting up of the EMSTF. Property, plant
and equipment acquired since 1 August 1996 are capitalised at their costs of
acquisition.

The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note 2.7):

—  buildings; and
— plant and equipment, including computer equipment, motor vehicles,
furniture and fixtures and other equipment.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Buildings 10 — 35 years
—  Computer equipment 4 - 10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Furniture and fixtures 5—7 years

—  Other equipment 7 years
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The land on which the EMSTF's buildings are situated is regarded as a non-
depreciating asset.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and capitalised
development costs of computer software programmes. Expenditure on
development of computer software programmes is capitalised if the
programmes are technically feasible and the EMSTF has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. Intangible assets are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2.7).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives of 4 to 10 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify any indication of impairment. If there is an indication of
impairment, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Inventories

Inventories are materials to be consumed in the rendering of services. They
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, cost being
determined using the weighted average cost method. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

When inventories are consumed in the rendering of services, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits

The employees of the EMSTF comprise civil servants and contract staff.
Salaries, staff gratuities and annual leave entitlements are accrued and
recognised as expenditure in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by the staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including pensions and
housing benefits provided to the staff by the Government, are charged as
expenditure in the year in which the associated services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, the pension liabilities of
the EMSTF are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-costs charged by
the Government. For other staff, contributions to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.

Revenue recognition
Revenue
Revenue from contracts for provision of services at agreed service level
covering a specified period of time is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period concerned. For other service contracts, revenue is
recognised based on services performed during the reporting period as
a percentage of the total services covered by the contract.

Fees received but related to services to be performed in future periods
are recorded as deferred revenue.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the spot exchange rates at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the closing exchange rate at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the EMSTF has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.



EMSTF Report 2015/16 53

5 %5 3 3% Py =
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 FESHBE(E)
214BBE A T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties
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The EMSTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government established
under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the year, the EMSTF has entered
into transactions with various related parties, including government bureaux
and departments, trading funds and financially autonomous bodies
controlled or significantly influenced by the Government, in the ordinary
course of its business.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current accounting period. There have
been no changes to the accounting policies applied in the financial
statements for the years presented as a result of these developments.

The EMSTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the
current accounting period (note 24).

ERE TURNOVER

2016 2015
BWEREFILERY Electrical, mechanical and electronic services 5,093,199 4,837,861
HETRERS Vehicle services 302,802 284,595
TREFKEMRE Project and consultancy services 343,585 348,999
HAih Others 24,585 20,263
HEE Total 5,764,171 5,491,718

4 BERZE OPERATING COSTS

2016 2015
ETEMA Staff costs 2,343,943 2,248,926
M Materials 450,255 441,600
B A Contractors cost 2,347,317 2,168,077
HehEHEER Rental and management charges 35,684 29,624
—MREBEERITHRAX General operating and administration expenses 216,259 222,736
T8 N Depreciation and amortisation 35,181 33,550
EitEH Audit fees 1,501 946
HEE Total 5,430,140 5,145,459
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5 HftlxA OTHER INCOME
2016 2015
RITE AT B U A Interest income from bank deposits 8,692 18,993
SN R F 8 B A Interest income from placement with the
Exchange Fund 166,267 118,488
B Total 174,959 137,481

6 BRASRK
@ REEKEXRAMBOEEFEHOT -

NOTIONAL PROFITS TAX

(a) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of comprehensive income

represents:

2016 2015
B Current tax
KEBA EF SR EE Provision for notional profits tax for the year 81,463 74,245
IE I B Deferred tax
ERUEEZENES Origination of temporary differences 1,039 2,358
ZHEREBH Notional profits tax 82,502 76,603

(b) 1R 32 B & 5 A 1R 8 A R R ET H A B iR

(b) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax

N rates is as follows:

2016 2015
ZENEHATEF Profit before notional profits tax 508,990 483,740

BEENEHE16.5% Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%
(2015 : 16.5%) ATt & H K B 3K (2015: 16.5%) 83,983 79,817
— R B One-off tax reduction (20) (20)
ERBMBMAE TR R Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,461) (3,194)
ZHEHELH Notional tax expense 82,502 76,603

7 BEREDRE

BTEEDREZNE2EEKE(TERENS
WAMBE T E) B AEEEEFHFEM
BHESX BTEEREYE RE =M
PERNEE - BHBRETEEEES A AE
N BArRkE T BFEATEERRETS%
(2015 : 7.8%)H B 1Z -

RATE OF RETURN ON FIXED ASSETS

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total comprehensive income

(excluding interest income and interest expenses) divided by average net fixed

assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and

equipment and intangible assets. The EMSTF is expected to meet a target rate of

return on fixed assets of 7.8% per year (2015: 7.8%) as determined by the

Financial Secretary.
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B 7 35 3% M 3
8 ME RWEIBPHM PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
TR HAR
EEY B HEEE M HE BEEEE HthSd wiE
Furniture

Land and Computer Motor and Other

buildings equipment vehicles fixtures equipment Total
2% Cost
R2014F4 81 H At 1 April 2014 950,100 65,768 38,388 74,640 39,326 1,168,222
30 Additions - 8,032 5,696 2,184 2,061 17,973
HE /3T Disposals - - (2,821) - (2,655) (5,476)
HR2015F3 A31H At 31 March 2015 950,100 73,800 41,263 76,824 38,732 1,180,719
R2015F4 /1 H At 1 April 2015 950,100 73,800 41,263 76,824 38,732 1,180,719
2 h0 Additions - 17,172 8,865 4,033 1,012 31,082
i Disposals - - @2 - ©62) (4936
7A201653H31H At 31 March 2016 950,100 90,972 45,854 80,857 39,082 1,206,865
2N E Accumulated depreciation
R2014F4H1H At 1 April 2014 192,441 43,059 33,654 47,076 20,247 336,477
FEEH Charge for the year 7,841 6,675 2,458 6,336 4,655 27,965
& /5 8 B B Written back on disposals = = (2,821) = (2,655) (5,476)
M2015F3 A31H At 31 March 2015 200,282 49,734 33,291 53,412 22,247 358,966
H2015F4A1H At 1 April 2015 200,282 49,734 33,291 53,412 22,247 358,966
FEEH Charge for the year 7,841 8,669 2,893 6,201 4,201 29,805
H € /5T 5 o] 8B Written back on disposals = = (4,274) - (662) (4,936)
H201643 8310 At 31 March 2016 208,123 58,403 31,910 59,613 25,786 383,835
R R E Net book value
20163 A31H At 31 March 2016 741,977 32,569 13,944 21,244 13,296 823,030
201543 A31H At 31 March 2015 749,818 24,066 7,972 23,412 16,485 821,753
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NEESTERANERTF1ABETHNETE
EHE ZEERIIEESREEEBEGCTF
MFEHFERER R H3FHINEE S EH
(2016 F1 A1 R B3FHBNESR) TR E — &
FENEFHFEERZ MERERSE ' TR
0% 20165 E & B X B EF33% ' 20154F
BEFF55% °

BRRE INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EEBEERR
RAGBEBEAE
Computer software licences and
system development costs

2016 2015
R A Cost
R E ) At beginning of year 48,224 48,224
3% 40 Additions 880 -
RE At end of year 49,104 48,224
Ret#sy Accumulated amortisation
REY At beginning of year 42,603 37,018
FEEH Charge for the year 5,376 5,585
REL At end of year 47,979 42,603
IR T FE Net book value
RELR At end of year 1,125 5,621

10 )'EEEEFER PLACEMENT WITH THE EXCHANGE FUND

The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund comprised principal sums of
HK$3,000 million (2015: HK$3,000 million) and interest paid but not yet
withdrawn at the end of the reporting period of HK$505.0 million (2015:
HK$318.4 million). The term of the placement is six years from the dates of
placement, during which the principal sums cannot be withdrawn. The two
principal sums of HK$2,200 million and HK$800 million will mature in June 2017
and December 2020 respectively.

Interest is payable at a fixed rate determined every January. The rate is the average
annual investment return of the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past
six years or the average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes (three-year
Government Bonds with effect from 1 January 2016) for the past year subject to a
minimum of zero percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed
at 3.3% per annum for the year 2016 and 5.5% per annum for the year 2015.
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11 FEUR IR 5% & T8 £+ iRk =% DEBTORS AND PREPAYMENTS
2016 2015
JFE W R R Debtors 584 169
FE IR K Prepayments 650 426
INEE S FRIESTFE Accrued interest from placement with
the Exchange Fund 28,758 49,071
RITFEREETF B Accrued interest from bank deposits 1,029 306
HEE Total 31,021 49,972
12 2R CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS
2016 2015
HEEALWIWE 2 Deposits received from related parties 941,742 762,089
REMEBEFPWMAEE Deposits received from other customers 2 -
B Total 941,744 762,089
13 {5 B 5 5% i PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

AT EREHAERBMESFFIEMMRTI  This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave and obligations
LFEBRAYEBN RSN G AE (R on contract end gratuities payable to contract staff for services rendered up to the
BHEE2.10) © end of the reporting period (also see Note 2.10).

1 BERKA DEFERRED REVENUE

EHRIEHRE  BEWRRMESSYNEBA - This represents contract fees received in advance for which services have not yet
been rendered.

2016 2015

HEEALTWRHNEZENER Contract fees received in advance from
related parties 826,690 597,360

REMBEFPUBMMNEBEHZEOEA Contract fees received in advance from
other customers 7,210 13,584

PR Total 833,900 610,944
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15 & 5E iR &

ATAERBRRRNEROETEHRNES
MRS A R R

DEFERRED TAX

Major components of deferred tax recognised in the statement of financial position

and the movements during the year are as follows:

HBAEHE
MERBHED H
MER2BHE TURNMHEER &%
Depreciation
allowances in
excess of
the related Other
depreciation  temporary
and amortisation differences Total
20144 51 B & & Balance at 1 April 2014 15,226 (6,423) 8,803
ReEEKZERNR Charged to statement of
comprehensive income 319 2,039 2,358
20153 A31 B & Balance at 31 March 2015 15,545 (4,384) 11,161
20154 A1 H &% Balance at 1 April 2015 15,545 (4,384) 11,161
2T S R Charged / (Credited) to
statement of
comprehensive income 1,581 (542) 1,039
2016 E3 B31H &% Balance at 31 March 2016 17,126 (4,926) 12,200
16 EEERELETX TRADING FUND CAPITAL
WARNEKETELEELELSHNKE - This represents the Government'’s investment in the EMSTF.
17 REEF RETAINED EARNINGS
2016 2015
F A 4 Balance at beginning of year 2,511,243 2,307,675
FEAEZENRR Total comprehensive income for the year 426,488 407,137
BER B Proposed dividend (213,244) (203,569)
FRER Balance at end of year 2,724,487 2,511,243
18 BESEPIR R PROPOSED DIVIDEND

MRFREREEREEFSE2E KRG
REXMEGLRBRERENEELENEET
B 50% B 12K B b 2 (2015 : 50%) {EH °

The proposed dividend to the Government is based on the total comprehensive
income for the year and the dividend payout ratio of 50% (2015: 50%) stated in
the annual business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and the

Treasury.
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VDHEERERRE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2016 2015
Re RIRITHERH Cash and bank balances 5,435 2,431
RITTER Bank deposits 2,260,000 1,388,000
NEF Sub-total 2,265,435 1,390,431

B REHRBIAIMEAMBITER Less: Bank deposits with original
maturity over three months 1,100,000 -
HEFERRE Cash and cash equivalents 1,165,435 1,390,431

20 & i COMMITMENTS
(a) EAXREIE Capital commitments

2016F3A31H  HETEZEEES K
EEVBREPELBEENE A EKEN

At 31 March 2016, the EMSTF had capital commitments, so far as not provided for
in the financial statements, as follows:

T
2016 2015
BiEREL Authorised and contracted for 31,053 17,600
BB AR E LY Authorised but not yet contracted for 71,618 37,752
PR Total 102,671 55,352

(b) EERNAE
120163 A31H  IRETAIHIEA L ib
REEYMLBRYOENABRINNRERE

Operating lease commitments
At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease payments under the non-
cancellable operating leases for land and buildings were payable as follows:

NHESBEHER:
2016 2015
TiBiBE1F Not later than one year 7,757 4,393
HiE1FETEMASE Later than one year but not later
than five years 14,506 509
PR Total 22,263 4,902
21 RFARK CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

MR2016F3A31H ETREEESH —R
TRETERREFPE L M2,031E8%T(2015 ¢
2NEAT)BHRBENZRITEEHEEN
BEFERE FHZFPFAKESIREEERES
HREAE AL o

At 31 March 2016, the EMSTF had provided a bank with counter-indemnity in
respect of performance bonds for HK$20.31 million (2015: HK$22.32 million)
issued by the bank in favour of certain clients who are related parties of the
EMSTF.
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o

CETREEESNEERR  TERR
REWIRR  RITEARRIIEESFR -

EUIRREZBERFE  HEBNE
ERkEBE SEEREEERR  ME
ERFEREEREB NIRRT - ERI
ERSFH HEBECERARITER-

CETIREERSNERMEEMAAEN
RREERBESNEREE -

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other

material related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(a)

Services provided to related parties included electrical, mechanical and
electronic services; vehicle services; and project and consultancy services. The
total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$5,722 million (2015:
HK$5,451 million). This amount was included in turnover under note 3.

Services received from related parties included maintenance, accommodation,
central administration and auditing. The total cost incurred on these services
amounted to HK$99.9 million (2015: HK$91.1 million). This amount was
included in operating costs under note 4.

Acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out projects
and motor vehicles. The total cost of these assets amounted to HK$8.2
million (2015: HK$5.7 million).

Services provided to related parties were priced on a cost-plus basis. Services

received from related parties were charged at the rates payable by the general

public for services which were also available to the public or on a full cost recovery

basis for services which were available only to related parties.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Investment policy

Surplus cash is invested in financial instruments including fixed deposits and
placement with the Exchange Fund. It is the EMSTF's policy that all
investments in financial instruments should be principal-protected.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The EMSTF's credit risk is primarily attributable to debtors, bank deposits and
placement with the Exchange Fund.

Debtors include mainly accrued interest and the associated credit risk is
minimal. To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with licensed
banks in Hong Kong. For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit
risk is considered to be low.

The maximum exposure of the financial assets of the EMSTF to credit risk is
equal to their carrying values.
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23 MEBERBER (B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

B3IRBESER Liquidity risk
mEBESRKRIE—ARESEURTES Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
BREEEENETHRR - obligations associated with financial liabilities.
WMETREEECEBAEABEESREDT The EMSTF employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by
RKEBRBESRER FHBEIMENE forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital
CHERERKRETRLEESCNEEE of the EMSTF to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
& BRUNZNMEISBHEEREAD requirements could be met.

23.4F = & ks Interest rate risk
FMERBEATSHEES M| BUEED Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market
B FXERAIE—F D AEQNFEFE interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk
BB 2 3R & 7 = A 5 E R o and cash flow interest rate risk.
AFENREBRESRIAENAFEER Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial
MGHEEHMESNRER - ARIEET instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since
REEESHMARTERHUREEM Xt all of the EMSTF's bank deposits bear interest at fixed rates, their fair values
B EWMENE A EBEFHHNAEE will fall when market interest rates increase. However, as they are all stated
BeTk - TH BARELETFERYLEH at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect their
RAES R mHAEEHIreFEEK carrying amounts and the EMSTF's profit and reserves.

HEMMETRELELSNRNMFERS -

HerheaMEZRBRESHITANKKES Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
RESHEAMSHEEEME SRR o # instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
FIREEESEERYEANRERE EMSTF is not exposed to material cash flow interest rate risk because it has
MERE FAEEEENTIESH T AR no major financial instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.

TREERE®MIA-

2355 ¥ & b Currency risk
EEEMIESHM T AN A FERRKAIE Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
enE g FAEXRZEmKENER - instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

EIREEESREEANEEL AR The EMSTF does not have significant exposure to currency risk as substantially

EESR I AR AL 2UABITAEK all of its financial instruments are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
AL °

23.6 H fth Bt 7 /= B Other financial risk
WMETRRLEESCEREF —AEBEN The EMSTF is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the interest
SNEESFREX(WE10) /& &) A rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which is determined every
mME /AR - R2016F3A318 » B January (Note 10). It was estimated that, as at 31 March 2016, a 50 basis
20154 K% 2016 4F /9 B K 12 0 / 5k 4> 50 & 3= point (2015: 50 basis point) increase / decrease in the interest rates for 2015
26(2015 : SOMEEZ ) MEMEZRE - & and 2016, with all other variables held constant, would increase / decrease
HEZFERHREBBZIN/ 1,460 8 5 the profit for the year and reserves by HK$14.6 million (2015: HK$15.1

76 (2015 : 1,5108 8 7T) © million).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair values

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. In the absence of
such quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using present value or
other valuation techniques, using inputs based on market conditions existing
at the end of the reporting period.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial position at
amounts equal to or not materially different from their fair values.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2016 and which have not been early
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the EMSTF:

EUTHHSE 2%
RENETHEER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BEPBMEEAESR /T A

BEMBRELENEISRIRBTFPAHZ KA

ARV BHMELEAE 165K HE ]

20181 A 1R
1 January 2018

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

20181 H1H
1January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

20191 A1H
1 January 2019

HKFRS 16, Leases

KMETIRLEESERZTER  HEIR
RRTEEAREMNPRBHEELENTBEN
A -BEEZANAL ASERERAREE
Bl HERBIRERBIAA e HHE T2
AWM BBREBRENTE -

The EMSTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial adoption. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the financial statements.
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BE20% : 2@
OUR FIRST 20 YEARS: MILESTONES

10

ETREEER
FORMER DIRECTORS OF ELECTRICAL AND
MECHANICAL SERVICES

EIREEEEMET
EMSTF STAFF

15

EIREEESNER
EMSTF CLIENTS

1996

EIRLEECHE(EEESK
By 1996 F 6 BB - LB &
BENARNABBRTARRD - 2BPRE
FHBIR M E TRRARTS -

The Electrical and Mechanical Services
Trading Fund (EMSTF) was established
following the enactment of “Trading
Funds Ordinance” in June 1996, to
provide E&M services to government
bureaux, departments and autonomous
bodies on a self-financing basis.



2 FHERRRBERIEFLE
RAEIRIEIREERAS]
RERTTRMINREEE -

Commissioned independent
market research firms to conduct
first survey on clients’ and staff’s
needs. The survey was later
developed into regular “Customer
Opinion Survey” and “Staff
Satisfaction Survey” to facilitate
our further service improvement.

1998

KRB fESESRGEEE
N BT EDFT

The first government department
to win the Hong Kong Award for
Services (Productivity).

EMSTF 20th Anniversary Commemorative Booklet

1999

X A (B 5150 9001 mE &
BRADERERNBATIM -

The first government department
to obtain the Corporate Certification
for 1ISO 9001 Quality Management
System.

2000

B A EESI1SO 14001 B8 %
B RS ERBHBATEMN -

The first government department
to obtain the Corporate
Certification for 1SO 14001
Environmental Management
System.

2001

B[ EalEs] A
EARERKBE @M
RERBEE - AR BBEEN
LEMEREMES -

Developed Vision, Mission and
Values to align with its longer-
term strategic goal, better reflect
the corporate culture and
guide future operation and
development.

ERZTRBREB I BABREE
A - JE 15 OHSAS 18001 5% ¥ 12
EREEEIBRGRE o

Obtained the OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety
Management System Certification
for its significant improvement in
occupational health and safety
management.

07
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2002

HEFBAMRME - THE 1999F
MEERSHTFRN o

Opened up market fully after

phased untying of customers
from 1999.

2003

e WIS

Worked closely with clients to
combat SARS.

HEPET

2004

W%Eﬂ%%ﬁ
B 2 5 69 R B
ﬁ%%%ﬁ A
ARFE o

The first government department
to adopt a new Corporate
Computer System to further
enhance its financial management,
daily operation and customer
service.

il
P
&

2005

BENEEBAE - KBRS
T B 4G & S0 IRR AT - 12
=N ERBBEMEEREK

Relocated to the New Kowloon
Bay Headquarters Building
equipped with environmental
protection technology, enhancing
internal communications and
operational efficiency.

2006

X 7% B 18 BT AP P
ESEEEREEXR
mEBRETERES
B BERBGES
=% -

The first government department
to win the Hong Kong
Management Association Total
Quality Management Gold Award
in recognition of its high-quality
services.

2007

BERESNMBTEROR B A RE
LEMBEFEIRTIIE UAEMR
BEALCRER+RAFE -

Commissioned the E&M installations
of the Hong Kong-Shenzhen
Western Corridor timely to
celebrate the 10th anniversary of
Hong Kong's return to Chinese
sovereignty.

2008

/520081t R BRE F i E E R M
[Tk | BB EEMEMAE
AR AR o

Supported the Equestrian Events
of the 2008 Beijing Olympics
with “zero-defect” project
management and comprehensive
information and communication
technology (ICT) services.

2009

B2V EERGCETARER
mESREFERELE -

Provided engineering support to
Hong Kong East Asian Games
with more than 230 EMSTF Staff.



2010

AR ﬁ%ﬁ‘iﬁﬁzﬁ%qﬂ/t\%ﬁﬂ%y
BEERGERNERFE
|soz7oo1?3.a7i

Obtained the ISO 27001
certificate for the world-class
information security management
system of the new Siu Ho Wan
Data Centre.

Erlle FahREI]E

5 BRACBEREIRR

ﬁ% B SKHE - IR R
EEEE-

Revised the Vision, Mission and
Values statements with a view to
improving the quality of life for
the community through
continuous enhancement of our
E&M engineering services.

2011

BKZEABRFENPRIGER
& mE201MEFBEN A
Wﬁzﬁmifﬁkﬁ (EVN
AR 7% e A K 28 & x4 A AR
R (E1#E) % 7%

Won the Award of the Year, Best
Public Service Application Grand
Award and Best Public Service
Application (Transformation)
Gold Award at the Hong Kong
ICT Awards 2011 for the Central
Command System developed for
the Marine Police.
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2012

BRK T BEMERERE T
PNEAFET -—RHEERETE -

Set up the Hong Kong E&M
Trade Promotion Working Group
to promote electrical and
mechanical engineering career to
the young generation.

2013

HEBRISEE R KRR
ﬂ@;ﬁk’*lm% i 8 B = R B
BF -

Obtained a patent on the
constant current regulator
testing platform jointly developed
with Airport Authority Hong
Kong.

2014

X Ih A& AN [R] Y i T SR BLAF1SO
55001 ﬁfz*éf%ffﬁﬁ:%a’é pNE:S
BEBEMNRES -

Obtained the ISO 55001
certificates for various E&M
systems to further enhance our
asset management competence.

2015

EL{51S0 50001 82 R & EENJL;U
EEL ’ “E/—J—\HE,/J? B EEI{’Eﬁé F iR
T o

Obtained the ISO 50001
Energy Management System
Certification for its efforts in
energy management.

2016

KEZELRNEESEERE
BEZGEMNARIRFIEA

BEINREIATRRE UK
[#R2 IR | SEE R E AV A

TARRE -

The EMSD Headquarters Building
was awarded BEAM Plus Existing
Buildings Final Platinum Rating
and a Platinum rating for the
BEAM Plus Neighbourhood pilot-
assessment from the Hong Kong
Green Building Council Limited.

09
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A ETREEER

FORMER DIRECTORS OF ELECTRICAL AND MECHANICAL

SERVICES

B L
Mr Hugh Phillipson

19965 BUMELEUREBRN I DEERETIZLE
ESORILKLE @R TE - AR &KRAAZHEX
B E - ERBIMT AEBITE  PlInETHIIMEAR
RS REIRBEFHERE AEAMBEEMAE
RA - WANREEFHEE -

MHECFEIHERNENERIEEER  SRETE
FBEZABBRAE  XERZBRUNR o &RBUFA
AT ERETHREEESMKYMEER TSEIR
D RRRBRE  SHREEREEESAIEFHET
BRESANZEESHEA -

BIFEERT  [H—BETOMELEESREETR
HERHZTENEZNRBIE - FERAEHELB

CRHMBEISUEE - BENERERKRE  CEEDR
ERBEE K-

As the department head who oversaw the setting up of
EMSTF in 1996 and the transition process, Mr Hugh
Phillipson was most impressed by the shift in corporate
culture. Much work was done to prepare staff for the
change, like training and organisational restructuring.
Colleagues became more customer-oriented and there was
more communication.

He recalled that staff associations were initially very
concerned about the change and there was resistance by
staff at all levels, including professionals. Discussion on this
issue heated up, but what triggered their eventual change
of mind was the Government's undertaking that there
would be no redundancy as a result of becoming a trading
fund. This gave staff the peace of mind that was essential
for the implementation of subsequent change initiatives and
developments in the organisation which shaped EMSTF as
we know it today.

“I have always been impressed by the great variety and
importance of all the work EMSTF does to support Hong
Kong in so many ways. Many colleagues gave their best to
make the change possible,” he said. “It is indeed a unique
department, even in world ranking.”

RitigraE
Mr Lai Sze-hoi, Roger

RAB/LERBEMIN  RETIZLEESHEKA R
MRBEZR S EEABISRAES  MERE TEZARK
RIFIIMERERRNER  REELEES LR RS
MR - MIFANHET REZIK] - KB=FNE 28
ESN2006FKUAEERSEEEEEXHEREERE
BB BEBUFEBPT -

EEETHWITHFHBEAMSLEETRARE - X
N TRAREEMTERERE  E2EESREERN
BEZANEENEZRNIBEHFSEE LOMARE  MAR
SHARSAAZANRAEER REARRETHEES
MESRMERE - A#iFA - T ERRAEFHNIN - |

(DL HE BREACAZBAFEFLAS  SIAER

TH AE—#EORETLEREN  RELARE

BORBHRMNESR - R TEFRFANERDERIE

géﬁﬁi‘% C BARBEMEMAS - REHBEEIEFEE
£ o

Reflecting on his years as Director of Electrical and
Mechanical Services, Mr Lai Sze-hoi said EMSTF had made
great strides in cost effectiveness and service quality with
more resources set aside for investment in training and
organisational development, hence enabling EMSTF as a
whole to serve the public better. He also promoted EMSTF's
“quality journey” with great enthusiasm. After three years
of hard work, EMSTF became the first government
department to win the Gold Award of the Hong Kong
Management Association Quality Award in 2006.

Working at EMSTF had made a significant personal impact
on him as well. “I was initially more interested in technical
matters, but my duties at EMSTF prompted me to read more
widely on the subject of management and think through
many management issues. It also gave me plenty of
opportunities to talk to colleagues with differing views. The
experience made me realise that one must first understand
others’ wishes and concerns and treat people with sincerity
to forge better communication,” he said.

“Training an army for a thousand days to use it for one
morning,”Mr Lai quoted the Chinese idiom in a memo
issued to all staff during the SARS epidemic, saying that
extensive preparations would eventually pay off. His
message was to urge all colleagues to continue serving the
public wholeheartedly in the face of a daunting crisis. He
recalled that in those days, many colleagues worked hard
round the clock to provide services and retrofit ventilation
fans for hospitals, which ultimately helped them through the
crisis.
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Mr Ho Kwong-wai noted that EMSTF's biggest achievement
during his years as Director of Electrical and Mechanical
Services was providing comprehensive information
technology services to the 2008 Beijing Olympic Equestrian
Events held in Hong Kong. To take on this highly challenging
task, EMSTF set up a dedicated internal team which worked
on the job for two years. The event was successfully
completed, and the client was highly satisfied with our
services, praising our services as “zero defect”.

“The strength of EMSTF is that its people have a great sense
of team spirit, working like a family. Together we can
resolve any difficulty. Even during the SARS outbreak when
the risk was high, we were able to complete our tasks with
the spirit of serving the public,” he said. Mr Ho also
witnessed the days of “turmoil” when the trading fund
concept was first introduced, a very inspiring experience for
him too. “When there is a sudden change, one must be
open-minded and flexible in order to cope with the
change,” he said.

He recalled that he retired at a time when EMSTF had been
operating for more than ten years. At that point EMSTF had
already achieved its objectives and intended results in service
quality and financial performance, proving that the original
decision for the transformation was wise.
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The development of EMSTF was relatively stable during the
years when Mr Chan Hung-cheung was Director of Electrical
and Mechanical Services, giving him room to fine-tune and
streamline the organisation to prepare for longer-term
development. For instance, the number of non-civil service
contract (NCSC) staff was reduced while the number of civil
service (CS) posts was increased, thus creating more
opportunities for NCSC staff to apply for CS posts. He also
advocated the better use of market mechanism via
contracting out work of secondary importance, so that
EMSTF staff could focus on higher value-added services.

He recalled that working at EMSTF was very challenging and
could train him up and made him feel living a “fulfilled life".
EMSTF made him realise what it means to strive hard in the
face of difficulties: the more difficulties there are, the more
one can learn and raise one’s confidence. He also learnt that
for any problem, there is always a solution. The insight gave
him the courage to tackle challenges upfront with
enthusiasm and never run away from them.

"EMSTF has been able to emerge successfully from every
change and challenge. The reason is that our colleagues are
willing to accept changes. They understand that only
changes can bring progress. Therefore, they have the
confidence to embrace every major change and beat every
challenge,” he said.
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Retired in 2015, Mr Fong Mo joined the Apprentice Training Scheme of the then Public Works Department in 1971 and was
posted to the then E&M Office, forerunner of EMSD, in 1976. He was the Shift Charge Engineer before retirement.

His most unforgettable experience is the SARS epidemic in 2003. Mr Fong was one of the three members of an EMSD team
that went inside Amoy Gardens to collect dust samples for testing by the Government Laboratory. Clad in full protective
gear, he and other government colleagues worked for some ten hours there. “In those days, however, even goods suppliers
dared not go inside the hospitals. They would only leave the goods at the road entrance. At that time, we had very close
collaboration with the medical staff. We really only had each other to trust and depend on,” he recalled. Looking back,
Mr Fong is still very grateful to those colleagues who worked side by side with him to fight SARS.
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Mr Li Man-ching joined the Apprentice Training Scheme in 1970 and retired from EMSD in 2013. He was the Shift Charge
Engineer before retirement.

Mr Li is grateful that though it was an eventful and turbulent time back in 1996 when EMSTF was first established, everyone
in EMSTF was united as a team and eventually rode out the storm of change. “During the early stage of EMSTF's full
entrance into the open market, | started to provide one-stop services to the Hospital Authority (HA) as a way to explore
business opportunities. Temporary building maintenance services as well as addition, alteration and improvement works were
also provided at HA's request during SARS until these services were handed over to HA in 2012. | feel proud for being able
to deliver ‘full-service solutions’ to clients,” he said.
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Mr Lee Kar-sing joined the first Craft Apprentice Training Scheme in 1970. He was posted to the General Engineering

Services Division in 2002 and retired in 2015. He was the Shift Charge Engineer before retirement.

Mr Lee said that he was impressed by the commitment shown by EMSTF colleagues when the Central Government Offices
(CGO) were occupied in 2014. On the morning of 1 December, due to the blockage of CGO by protesters, both government
and contractor staff could not go into CGO for work. The Director of Administration announced that CGO was to be closed
temporarily and that the concerned staff were not required to report for duty that morning. However, for the benefit of
those government colleagues performing emergency duties and police officers working in CGO, EMSTF colleagues still made
great efforts and finally managed to enter CGO to continue operating the air-conditioning, E&M and building services
systems there. He recalled, “Some of our colleagues even volunteered to walk around the square filled with sit-in protestors
before office hours, with a view to ensuring that CGO'’s electric power loading was not exceeded.”
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Mr Leung Kam-cheung joined the Project Division of EMSD in 1983 and retired in early 2016. He was the Senior Engineer
before retirement.

Mr Leung was responsible for the overall planning, co-ordination and operation of information and communication
technology systems and facilities for the 2008 Olympic Equestrian Events held in Hong Kong. He said, “EMSTF was successful
in providing project management of information technology and communication systems and facilities for the World Trade
Organisation Hong Kong Ministerial Conference in 2005. This probably led to EMSTF being entrusted again with the task of
participating in the Olympic Equestrian Events.” In fact, he was stationed full-time at the Equestrian Company of Hong Kong
from 2006 to 2008, reporting regularly to the Beijing Olympic Organising Committee and having frequent discussions on
technical details as well as project progress with the Committee.



EITREEESNET
EMSTF STAFF

RIBREEN 1980 F 2 MNBTENARET &) - = 1993 FRERBHIS
AFEATEEERREREES  BAREZRINKE/METIE -

REERT  [HEEEESKIVE #ASEEEABERNE THRBEEER
SRS EARATKBFREEEEAREERA @R ANEEFE - BEE
BT ARTHREREERA  AMF2EELEH  MEEESTMHR
RXEETER - R SEBESHERSEERNAERABMNE - F0RE
RACDER T HEMBRETFHL - BRFARTEFKFIORSEREZMMNE

A BELEEESCENET 206 AFEEKR 2 BEEEEFRN - |

Mr Leung Tak-man joined the Apprentice Training Scheme in 1980. He was posted to the Kai Tak Airport in 1993, and in 1998 to
the new Hong Kong International Airport at Chek Lap Kok where he still works today. He is the Regional Manager/Airport Sector of

EMSD.

Mr Leung recalled, “During the early days of EMSTF, though senior management had explained at length the concept of trading
fund to staff, nobody was really clear about its operational mode or the detailed changes it would bring. Not until implementation
began did we start to realise how enormous the changes were: there had to be customer awareness, and elements of commercial
operation were also involved. Later on, the mode of co-operation between EMSTF and the Airport Authority also changed. Some of
our teammates were unhappy as they felt that they had become a sub-contractor. However, we tried to change their mindset with
the concept of ‘partnership with clients’. Now that EMSTF has been operating for 20 years, our colleagues are totally adapted to this

kind of operational mode.”
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Mr Fung Kim-ching joined the Apprentice Training Scheme in 1971 and this is his 45th year at the Department. He is the

Senior Mechanical Inspector/Vehicle of EMSD.

He frankly said that the Vehicle Engineering Sub-division (VESD) was dealt a heavy blow in the early stage of its transition to
a trading fund operation as colleagues were deeply worried about whether VESD could compete against other vehicle
dealers in the market. That was because VESD could not, like the vehicle dealers in the market, use the revenue from selling
parts and components to compensate for the loss incurred from providing vehicle maintenance services. However, after
painstaking effort by the senior management to explain the situation, colleagues eventually realised that “the only way out is
to improve ourselves, adapt to changes, grow together with the Department, and always go the extra mile in everything we
do.” “Today, VESD has finally broken even and managed to make a small profit. This is the outcome of the hard work by all

our colleagues at every level,” he said.
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EMSTF provides project planning, site supervision,
maintenance services, etc. for the E&M facilities in the road
projects of the Highways Department (HyD). Mr Lee Hoo-tin
was most impressed by the services provided by EMSTF's
Project Division (PD) for HyD's lift installation projects during
2014. PD’s advice was to improve the original design, where
each lift would be installed with an air-conditioning system,
by replacing it with a mechanical ventilation system that
would provide similar comfortable environment for users but
more energy-saving and environment-friendly. The new
design worked well and is still in use today.

He described EMSTF's services as “highly satisfactory and
professional”. “They are familiar with the government
operation and procurement procedures. They are committed
and willing to go the extra mile, and perform really well in
both aspects. Our works involve a lot of public consultation,
and they make strenuous efforts to assist us so that we can
finish our tasks smoothly. We are close working partners,”
he said.
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EMSTF provides ambulance procurement and maintenance
services to the Fire Services Department (FSD). Mr Ma Shun-
cheong recalled that about ten years ago, mechanical
breakdowns in ambulances caused much concern in the
community. EMSTF provided great support to FSD to
enhance ambulance procurement and maintenance services
so that ambulance fleet performance could always be
maintained at an optimal level, in order to provide
emergency ambulance services to the public. In recent years,
EMSTF has also introduced international standards for
ambulances to FSD so as to enhance the design of local
ambulances. Ambulances with new designs will soon be
operational.

“I am highly satisfied with EMSTF,” he said. “With
professional expertise and rich experience, the EMSTF team
provides reliable and quality services. We have a close and
excellent partnership,” he added.
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Mr Chan Wai-kit said that EMSTF had started providing
services for the Kai Tak Cruise Terminal (Terminal) since
2010, including the design of seaside apron facilities, the
five seaport passenger boarding bridges (SPBBs), onshore
fresh water supply and sewerage system as well as electronic
equipment and facilities in the terminal building. Starting
from 2013, EMSTF began to provide operation and
maintenance services for the SPBBs, the various E&M, air-
conditioning and building services systems as well as
electronic and engineering facilities.

Mr Chan said that EMSTF colleagues were highly co-
operative, professional and had excellent team spirit. He was
most impressed by EMSTF colleagues’ proactive assistance in
the operation of the SPBBs during the initial operation stage
of the Terminal. In particular, it was thanks to the assistance
of EMSTF colleagues in operating the bridges that during
the inaugural berthing of “Mariner of the Seas” in June
2013, all passengers disembarked very smoothly. “We are
very satisfied with EMSTF’s services. They respond promptly
to our requests and always come up with cost-effective
solutions. EMSTF is a vital ‘component’ of the Terminal. The
Terminal can hardly operate without them,” he added.
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“We are very satisfied with EMSTF’s services,” said Mr Leung
Kam-pui. “What we appreciate the most is its one-stop,
professional and reliable services,” he said. He described
their partnership as that between “fork and knife” — one
needs to complement the other to complete the work
successfully.

EMSTF provides O&M services for the E&M systems of the
Architectural Services Department (ArchSD) in its APB Centre
and other venues. It also provides comprehensive E&M
consultancy services for the works undertaken by the
Property Services Branch of ArchSD. Mr Leung recalled that
during the initial operation stage of EMSTF, there were some
grey areas in its service agreement with ArchSD. After
discussions made by both parties, a consensus was reached
which laid a good foundation for their subsequent long-
term co-operation.
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EMSTF provides maintenance services for the electrical, air-
conditioning, building services and electronic systems at
various municipal and cultural facilities as well as libraries
under the Leisure and Cultural Services Department (LCSD).
It also provides O&M services for lighting and stage facilities
in LCSD’s performance venues. Over the years, Ms Wan
Wai-ling has worked with EMSTF at the Queen Elizabeth
Stadium, the Hong Kong Central Library, the Hong Kong
Cultural Centre and the City Hall.

The most memorable experience she shared with EMSTF
took place in June last year, when an underground sea
water pipe near the Central Government Offices for a chiller
plant at the City Hall was damaged, causing suspension of
air-conditioning supply at some facilities of the venue.
Fortunately, thanks to the EMSTF staff who provided a series
of contingency measures and emergency support and
managed to deploy a large makeshift chiller system for the
City Hall within merely two days, services at the City Hall
were not affected by the incident. “I am very satisfied with
EMSTF. They are reliable, good value for money, experienced
and professional. They know our venues and operation very
well and always work in the best interest of our venues, so
that we can enhance the quality of our services to the
public,” she said.
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EMSTF provides maintenance services for the E&M, air-
conditioning, electronic, building services systems and
medical equipment as well as project management services
for major engineering projects at the Pamela Youde
Nethersole Eastern Hospital (PYNEH). Both parties have
worked together closely over the years. For Dr Lau Chor-
chiu, the most unforgettable experience was during the
SARS period when EMSTF and PYNEH colleagues jointly
developed a unique negative pressure ventilation system to
be used in high-risk clinical areas to reduce the risk of cross-
infection among medical staff. Another “nerve-wracking”
experience was that EMSTF urgently constructed the first
operating theatre with negative pressure ventilation system
for PYNEH under the Hospital Authority, which enabled the
hospital’s surgical department to conduct an emergency
surgery on a suspected SARS patient.

“We are grateful to have EMSTF as our highly committed
partner, with their sense of mission and values similar to
ours,” he said. “They respond fast, and always provide
perfect maintenance and engineering solutions. They are a
member of our hospital team, and together we have gone
through life-and-death situations. We trust each other. Our
partnership goes way beyond a mere service contract,” he
added.
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EMSTF scores a record high satisfaction rating
in the Customer Opinion Survey 2016.
We would like to express our heartfelt
thanks for our clients’ support and
our colleagues’ efforts.
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20th Anniversary Video
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